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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority
d/bfa The Coast RTA
Conway, South Carolina

To the Board of Direclors:
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Waccamaw
Regional Transportation Authority (the Coast RTA), Conway, South Carolina, as of and for the years ended
June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carclina’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Compiroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves petforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures seiected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due te fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controf relevant {o the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evalualing the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obfained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the business-type activities of Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South
Carolina, as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter
Effect of Adopling New Accounting Standard

As discussed in Note 1 fo the financial statements, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
issued revised accounting standards for accounting and reporting on pensions that governments provide to
their employees. The provisions of the new standard, which were effective for the current year, require
cost-sharing multipie-employer governments to report a net pension liability, pension expense and pension-
related deferred inflows and deferred outflows of resources based on the government's proportionate share
of the collective amounts for all governments participating in the cost-sharing multiple~employer retirement
plan. During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Coast RTA adopted the new accounting guidance, GASB
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. Our opinion on the basic financial
statements is not modified with respect {o this matier.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America reguire that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 12 and retirement benefits information on pages 35 and 36 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it {o be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures tc the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inguiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance,

OCther Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that coltectively
comprise Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina's basic financial
statements. The budgetary comparison schedules on pages 37 through 40 are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of
expenditures of federal awards on page 42 is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of
expenditures of state awards on page 44 is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the
South Carolina Department of Transportation, and is also not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The schedules of budgeted to actual costs - state awards on pages 46 and 47 are presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by the South Carolina Department of Transportation, and are
also not a required part of the basic financial statements.



Other Matters {Continued)
Other Supplementary Information {Continued)

The budgetary comparison schedules, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, the schedule of
expenditures of state awards and the schedules of budgeted to actual costs — state awards are the
responsibility of the Coast RTA's management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used fo prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the budgetary comparison schedules, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, the schedule of expenditures of state awards and the
schedules of budgeted to actual costs — state awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 27,
2016, on our consideration of Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina's
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resulis of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internat control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Columbia, South Carolina
January 27, 2016



WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
D/B/A THE COAST RTA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

(UNAUDITED)

This section of Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority's (the Coast RTA} annual financial report presents a
discussion and analysis of the Coast RTA's financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, with
selective comparison to the financial performance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. Please read it in conjunction
with the Coast RTA's financial statements, which follow this section.

ACTIVITES OF THE COAST RTA - HIGHLIGHTS AND SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

The 2015 change in net position was $(654,269) compared to a net decrease in net position of ($241,115) for the
year ended June 30, 2014,

The Coast RTA disposed of multiple transportation vehicies in June 2015 which included fully depreciated buses,
trolleys and vans which had no future service utility life or were not operational. The total cost removed from the
Coast RTA's capital asset inventory in June was $1,724,855, which approximated accumulated depreciation
through the disposal date. The removal of non-efficient and non-operational buses is part of the vehicle
transportation replacement initiative to better position the Coast RTA to continue meeting the needs of those
depending on this viable form of transportation in much more efficient and cost savings ways.

The Coast RTA acquired five (5) used buses from the Dallas Area Regional Transportation Authority in June 2015,
increasing its capital asset inventory by $173,881 and recognized in-kind contribution revenue of $144,045 on the
transfer of these buses, which represented the remaining Federal interest in the buses at the time of transfer,

The Coast RTA adopted and implemented GASB Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions (Employers) — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, which became effective for the current year. The
provisions of the new standard require a change in the accounting and reporting of cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit retirement plans in the financial statements of plan participating member employers. On July 1, 2014,
the date of adoption and implementation of the new standard, unrestricted net position was restated for the initial
recognition of the Coast RTA’s proportionate share of the net pension liability. Other changes in accounting and
reporting since the date of adoption and implementation of the new standard are more fully described in Notes 7 and
19 to the financial statements. The most significant impact at the time of adopting GASB Statement No. 68 was the
recognition of its proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the SC Retirement System and the
Police Officers Retirement System actuarially determined at June 30, 2013, which required a restatement of the
beginning balance in unrestricted net position as of July 1, 2014, of $3,676,480.

The Coast RTA recognized an impairment loss on two (2) International transportation buses which were taken out
of service at June 30, 2015, due to manufacturer defects which could render the buses unsafe while in use. The
impairment loss recognized totaled $271,901.

Net positon of the Coast RTA at June 30, 2015 was negatively impacted by the cumulative impact of excess
expenses over revenues of $654,269 and the recording of the net pension liability of $3,676,480 resulting from the
adoption of GASB Statement No. 68. Net position at June 30, 2015, compared to net position at June 30, 2014,
changed unfavorably by $4,330,749. Net position at June 30, 2015, reflects a deficit balance of $1,007,874.



OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial section of the annual report consists of three (3) parts: management's discussion and analysis (this section);
the basic financial statements with corresponding note disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI) along
with other supplementary schedules and information.

The financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the Coast RTA's overall financial status.
The financial statements also include disclosures in the notes to the financial statements that help explain and support
financial information presented in the basic financial statements by offering narrative and more detail. Following the basic
financial statements and notes to the financial statements is a section consisting of required supplementary information and
other suppiementary information that further explains and supports the information in the basic financial statements and
notes to the financial statements.

The Coast RTA reports it financial information using the full accrual basis of accounting as its financial reporting
framework. The financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. Under this financial reporting framework, operating and non-
operating revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned. Operating and non-operating expenses are
recognized in the period in which they are incurred and the related liability is created. Depreciation of capital assets is
recognized as a separate expense item in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.

Statement of Net Position — This statement presents information for tota! assets and deferred outflows of resources and
total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and net position. Net position is reported as the difference between total
assets plus deferred outflows of resources less total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. This statement is one way
to measure the Coast RTA's financial health or position at a given point in fime.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position ~ This statement presents information showing how the
Coast RTA's net position changed during the fiscal year. It identifies the revenues generated and the expenses incurred

associated with earning the revenues reported.

Statement of Cash Flows — This statement presents the sources and uses of cash segregated by four (4) major categories:
operating activities, noncapital financing activities, capital and related financing activities and investing activities.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes to the financial statements include disclosures and additional information
that is essential in understanding the financial data presented in the basic financial statements as well as certain other
disclosures regarding information about commitments, obligations and contingencies that do not necessarily affect account
balances reported in the statements as of a certain point in time or during a period of activity reported on.

RS! and Other Supplementary Information — The budgetary comparison schedules, the schedules of state retirement
contributions, net pension liabilities and related deferral accounts and the schedules of expenditures of federal and state
awards are not a required part of the Coast RTA's basic financial statements but offers additional analysis by comparing
actual and budgeted revenues and expenses with variances by major account groups, presentation regarding retirement
benefits as a member of the State’s cost-sharing multipie-employer retirement plan and Identification and reporting of
expenditures by project and or grant number for all federal and state assistance provided in the form of operating and
capital granis.



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The following condensed comparative financial statements of the Coast RTA serve as the key financial data providing
indicators for management, monitoring and planning. Comments regarding annual variances are included by section.

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Net position represents the difference between fofal assets plus deferred outflows of resources, less total liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources. As shown in Table 1, the Coast RTA's total net position at June 30, 2015, reports a deficit
balance of $1,907,874 compared to a positive balance of $2,422,873 reported at June 30, 2014. The financial position of
the Coast RTA as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 and its net position is as follows:

Table 1
Condensed Statement of Net Position
As Of June 30, 2015 2014
Current Assets $ 868,233 $ 905795

" Capital Assets, Net 2,305,364 2,821,674
Total Assets 3,173,597 3,727,469
Deferred Qutflows of Resources 298,653 -
Current Liabilities 745 185 573,861
Non-Current Liabilities 4,297,580 662,123
Total Liahilities 5,042,765 1,235,984
Deferred Inflows of Resources 337,359 68,610
Net Investment in Capital Assels 2228213 2,719,523
Unrestricted {Deficit) (4,136,087) {296,648)
Net Position (Deficit) {1,907,874) 2,422 875

Current assets decreased by $37,562 from the prior year as a result of a decrease in inventory and a decrease in cash
offset by an increase in grant receivables.

Net capital assets decreased by $518,310 or 18.3% resulting from a reduction in the cost of operating fleet vehicles from
digsposals at year end; reduction of vehicle costs due to impairment loss recognition, recognition of annual depreciation
expense on furniture, fixtures and equipment, buildings and improvements and vehicles being used in operations, offset by
a cost increase from the acquisition of five (5) used buses from DART.

Deferred outflows of resources increased by $298,653 from the initial year recording of the differences between expected
and actual funding of plan retirement contributions and current period retirement contributions related to the defined benefit
pension plans as a result of adoption of GASB Statement No. 88, effective for the current year.

Current liabilities increased by $171,324 from the prior year primarily due to an increase in current payables for operating
expenses, additional obligations owed to SCDOT within the next operating cycle and additional obligations owed to the Federal
Transit Administration for remaining equity interests in vehicles sold, offset by a decrease in accrued compensated absences
and accrued payroil and related withholdings.



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Condensed Statement of Net Position {Continued)

Overall, non-current liabilities increased $3,635,457. The significant component of the increase compared to year 2014 is
attributable to the Coast RTA’s net pension liabllity, which is required by GASB Statement No. 68, effective for the current year.
The Coast RTA’s net pension liability at June 30, 2015, totaled $3,728,453, Excluding the net pension liability at June 30,
2015, non-current liabilities decreased due to reclassifications of current portion of the obligation payable to DHHS, ($30,000),
reclassification of current portion of the obligation due to SCDOT ($84,080) offset by an increase of $21,084 in accrued
compensated absences which is based on a three year average of leave taken.

Deferred inflows of resources increased by $268,749 resulting from the recording of the increase in the net difference
between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments as a result of adoption of GASB Statement No. 68
offset by a decrease in local grant and other funds received in advance of earnings period. The Coast RTA carried forward
$46,668 to year 2015 from year 2014, which represented funds received for advertising and local funding from the City of
Myrtle Beach to expand service to routes 15N & 15S during the summer months of 2014 and 2015. These carry over funds.
were recognized as advertising and local grant fund revenues in fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Net position decreased by $4,330,749 from year 2014. There were two (2) components that affected the change in the
reported balance of net position at June 30, 2015, First, net position was decreased by $654,269 as a result of this year's
change in net position as reported on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the year ended
June 30, 2015. Second, net position was reduced by a restatement of the opening balance at July 1, 2014, the date of
adoption and implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, by $3,676,480 which represents the Coast RTA’s proportionate
share of the collective net pension liability of all Plan members.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The decrease in net position for the year ended June 30, 2015, before restatement for the effects of adopting GASB
Statement No. 68 was $654,269, compared to a $241,115 decrease for the year ended June 30, 2014, as reflected in the
foliowing table.

Table 2

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For The Year Ended June 30, 2015 2014
Operating Revenues $ 477436 $ 564,651
Operating Expenses (4,418,035) {4,551,260)
Depreciation (485,865) (645,522)
Operating Income {Loss) (4,424,464) {4,632.131)
Non-Operating Revenues(Expenses) 3,770,185 4,381,016
Change in Net Position (Decrease) {654,269) {241,115)
Net Position, Beginning of Year, as Previously Reported 2,422 875 2,663,990
Restatement for the Effects of

Implementation of GASB 68 (3,676,480) -
Net Position {Deficit), End of Year {1,807,874) 2,422,875




FINANCIAL ANALYSIS {Continued)

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position {Continued)

Operating Revenues

Operating revenues decreased by $87,215 due to deceases in passenger fares of $64,162 and bus advertising revenues of
$29,109. The net decrease is offset by an increase in other non-transit revenues of $6,056.

Operating Expenses

Before the provision for depreciation expense, operating expenses decreased by $135,225. The principal components
comprising the overall current year decrease were decreases in salaries, wages and fringe benefits of $152,895 due fo a
decrease in the number of personnel in high level management positions; a reduction in gasoline, diesel and oil expense of
$159,993 primarily resulting in lower gasoline and diesel fuel prices; offset by an increase in repairs and maintenance of
$141,149 due to an increase in the number of operational buses and repairing and maintenance of older buses in the
operating fleet. Other operating expenses were comparable with 2014, except for the costs removed for parts for vehicles
and trolleys that were disposed of in June 2015. These parts were considered obsolete as of June 30, 2015, with little
likelihood of cost recovery in the open market.

The decrease of $158,657 in the annual provision for depreciation expense is primarily attributable to recognition of
depreciation expense on buses that had met their estimated useful life or had become fully depreciated by use of the high
mileage (500,000 miles or more) threshold. After the end of year June 30, 2014, the majority of remaining buses in service
during year 2015 has less than 500,000 miles and were being depreciated over the estimated useful lives ranging from five
(5) to twelve (12) years. Comparative presentations of operating expenses are as follows:

Table 3

Condensed Statement of Operating Expenses

For The Year Ended June 30, 2015 2014
Salaries, Wages and Fringe Beneiits $3,033,905 $3,186,880
Fuel, Maintenance and Supplies | 797,054 812,842
Legal and Professional Services 143,421 135,032
Utilities and Telephone 86,224 72,542
Liabiiity Insurance 196,600 198,172
Non-Capital Equipment Purchased with Grant Fund 14,317 24,737
Interest on Capital Lease Financing - 7,700
Professional Dues and Subscriptions 12,744 9,890
Provision for Inventory Obsolescence 21,154 -
Other Operating Expenses 130,528 103,455
Operating Expenses Before Provision for Depreciation Expense 4,416,035 4,551,260
Provision for Depreciation Expense 485,865 645522
Total Operating Expenses 4,901,200 5,196,782




FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Analysis of Significant Budget Variations

The Board of Directors of the Coast RTA approves the operating and capital budgets for each year.
throughout the year can amend the budget as necessary. The operating and capital budgets were not amended

during the year ended June 30, 2015.
Table 4

Schedule of Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses and Changes in Net Position-

Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Operating Expenses:
Salaries, Wages and Fringe Benefits

Fuel, Maintenance and Supplies
Legal and Professional Fees
Utilities and Telephone

Liability Insurance

Professional Dues and Subscription

Non-Capital Equipment Purchased with
Grant Fund

Provision for Inventory Obsolescence

Other Operating Expenses
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Revenues:
Passenger Fares
Bus Advertising Revenues

Other Operating Revenues

Toial Operating Revenues

The Board

Actual - Variance
Original / Final Budgetary Favorable
Budget Basis (Unfavorable)

$ 3,310,100 $ 3,033,095 $ 276,106
941,080 797,054 144,006
35,000 143,421 (108,421)
76,000 66,224 9,776
206,000 196,600 9,400
11,500 12,744 (1,244)
- 14,317 {14,317)
- 21,154 {21,154)
199,450 130,526 68,924
4,779,110 4,416,035 363,078
538,374 449 577 (88,797)
100,000 11,847 (88,153)
12,500 16,012 3,512
650,874 477,436 {173,438)




FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Anaiysis of Significant Budget Variations (Continued)

Table 4 (Continued)
Scheduie of Operating Revenues and Operating Expenses and Changes in Net Position -
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

(Continued)
Actual - Variance
Original / Final Budgetary Favorable
Budget Basis {Unfavorable)
Operating Expenses in Excess
of Operating Revenues $(4,128,236) $(3,938,599) $ 189,637
SCDOT Audit Disallowance Debt
Reduction - 61,988 61,988
Operating and Administration Grants and
In-Kind Revenues ~ Buses Acquired 4,421,191 4 085018 (336,173)
Change in Net Position on the
Budgetary Basis 292 955 208,407 (84,548)

Expenses

Salaries, wages, and fringe benefits compared favorably to the budget by $276,105 as a result of unfilled high level and key
positions at the management level. Fuel and maintenance compared favorably to the budget by $144,008 as a result of
fower gasoline and diesel prices, offset by an increase in vehicle and equipment repair and maintenance costs due to
delaying repairs and unfilled maintenance positions in fiscal year 2015. Legal and professional fees compared unfavorably
to the budget by $108,421 primarily resulting from the use of an outside consultant to oversee the maintenance department
operations beginning in the fall of 2014 and continuing through the end of the year. Utilities and telephore compared
favorably to the budget by $9,776 as a result of increase efficiency of new heating and air conditioning system installed in
fiscal year 2014. Liability insurance compared favorably to the budget by $9,400 resulting from sale of buses in current
fiscal year and overestimating the actual insurance cost. Non-capital equipment purchased with grant funds and inventory
obsclescence compared unfavorably to the budget by $14,317 and $21,154, respectively, due to unbudgeted capital
purchases less than $5,000 per item and removal of costs associated with obsolete parts purchased for vehicles and
trolleys sold in June 2015. Other operating expenses compared favorably to the budget by $68,924. This includes costs
such as property and office equipment leases, and office supplies and postage, which are reduced resulting from utilizing
better inventory control and operating efficiencies. Costs compared unfavorably to the budget includes advertising and
marketing due to delaying route brochures and the refated costs from fiscal year 2014, and training and travel resulting
from additional travei for increased training oppottunities offered to management staff,

Revenues

Total operating revenues for the year ended June 30, 2015 compared unfavorably to budgeted revenues. The majority of
the operating revenues are from passenger fares and advertising. Passenger fares were down for fiscal year 2015 resulting
from reducing service hours and miles on routes. Advertising revenues were also down for fiscal year 2015 resulting from
negative public image and issues with unreliable transportation equipment. Operating grant revenues were lower than
budgeted revenues by $480,218 due to lower actual operating expenses for the year ended June 30, 2015. Operating grants
are received from federal, state, and local governments. The actual 2015 operating grant revenues were $76,145 less than
the 2014 operating grant revenues.
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CAPITAL ASSET HIGHLIGHTS

As of June 30, 2015, the Coast RTA had invested $6,306,625 in capital assets, including land, buildings, vehicles,
communication equipment, as well as other administrative equipment. Net of accumulated depreciation, the Coast RTA's
capital assets at June 30, 2015, totaled $2,305,364 (See Table 5). This amount represents a net decrease (including
additions and disposals), net of depreciation, of $516,310 compared to the June 30, 2014 balance of $2,821674. In
addition, the cost of two {2) International transportation buses was reduced by $271,901 and recognized as an impairment
loss due to limited marketability and usefulness of these buses in their current condition. These buses were taken out of
service on June 30, 2015 when management became aware of serious factory related defects which gave rise to increased
concerns over public safety in continuing to operate these buses. The costs of transportation vehicles increased from the
transfer of five (6) buses from the Dallas Area Regional Transit Authority on June 30, 2015, Certain fully depreciated
vehicles and other buses with no future service utility life were sold for scrap or market value in June 2015,

Table 5
Capital Assets by Funding Source
For The Year Ended June 30, 2015 2014

Funding Source

Federal, State and Local - -

The Coast RTA $ 6,306,625 $ 8,041,106
Total Capital Assets 6,306,625 8,041,108
Accumulated Depreciation Expense 4 001,261 5,219,432
Total Capital Assets, Net 2,305 364 2821674

SHORT TERM AND LONG TERM DEBT HIGHLIGHTS

The following is a summary of debt obligations resulting from signed agreements and with a scheduled repayment structure
until the entire debt obligation is satisfied in full. No interest is caleulated on the outstanding debt obligation balances under
each agreement. Required monthly or annual repayments include principal amounts only.

The Coast RTA has cost recovery agreements of understanding with 8C Depariment of Transportation, Division of Mass
Transit to repay debt obligations created by the early disposal and sale of six (6) Blue Bird buses, review of grant activity in
prior years with resulting costs being disallowed and for failure to complete the Bus Shelter and Signage Project in
accordance with the extended project completion dates. The debt reductions recognized each year and reported in the
same amount as non-operating revenues on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, identify the
poertion of grant proceeds withheld from the total grant award based on scheduled repayments structured when the
agreements were made. No cash is required to repay the SCDOT debt obligations, in addition to the annual withhoidings
of grant funds. The change in total debt obligations to SCDOT from June 30, 2014 to June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Balance at Additional Debt Reductions Thru  Balance at
June 30, 2014 Obligations Withholdings  June 30, 2015

Costs Disallowed from

Grant Reviews Prior to 2007 $165,830 $ - $ 34,924 $ 130,806
Early Disposal and Sale

of Blue Bird Buses 108,255 - 27,083 81,192
Bus Shelter and Signage

Project 324,093 53.407 - 377.500
Totals 598,178 53,407 61,987 289,598



SHORT TERM AND LONG TERM DEBT HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

The Coast RTA has a capital lease financing agreement with SC Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
requiring principal only payments of $2,500 per month until paid in full for vehicle equipment purchased in previous years.
The change in debt obligations to DHHS from June 30, 2014 to June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Balance at Additional Debt Cash Batance at
June 30, 2014 Obligations Repayments  June 30, 2015
Capitat Lease Debt
Obligation $ 102,151 $ - $25000 $ 77,151
Totals 102,161 - ~£5.000 L7181

The Coast RTA has a revolving loan agreement (revolving fund) with the SC Department of Transportation, Division of
Mass Transit which aftows for advancement of funds earmarked for short term working capital needs. There has been no
activity or change with regard to this revolving loan in the last two (2} years. The principal balance outstanding at June 30,
2015 and 2014 is $60,000. Since this is a revolving loan, there is has not been a structured principal repayment plan.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

The 2016 original budget was approved at the Coast RTA Board of Director's meeting on June 24, 2015.

The total operating expenses projected for 2016 are $4,421,000 which reflects a slight increase compared to 2015
actual expenses. The projected increase in expenses is due primarily to projected increases in salaries, wages, and
benefits, and other expenses deriving from additional professional services, travel and training, and contract maintenance.

The total projected operating revenues for 2016 are $462,000, which reflects a 3.34% decrease compared to 2015
actual operating revenues. The decrease is due to lower projected 2016 advertising revenues. The Coast RTA is not
emphasizing advertising until heightened focus on preventative maintenance improves fleet reliability,

The ongoing projects of the Coast RTA are due diligence related to the replacement of the bus facility, installing
signage where needed, continuing to replace transportation vehicles that have reached their estimated useful life, and
replacing outdated equipment in the maintenance facility.

CONTACTING THE COAST RTA'S MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our patrons and other interested parties with a general overview of the Coast
RTA's finances and to demonstrate the Coast RTA's accountability for the resources it receives. If you have any questions
about this report or need additional financial information, contact Ron Prater, CFO or Brian Piascik, General Manager at
the Coast RTA’s administration building located at 1418 Third Avenue, Conway, SC 29526,
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, DIB/A THE COAST RTA
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1891490 $ 461,048
Accounts Recelvable - Ridership and Cther Services 11,464 7,906
Accounts Recelvable - Federal and Stale Grants 526,708 272,192
Accounts Receivable - Employees 4,822 5,838
Inventory - Parts and Transportation Fuel 81,080 111,128
Prepaid Expenses 55,012 47,683
Total Current Assets 868,233 905,795
Capital Assets
Land 140,000 140,000
Buildings and improvements 1,498,731 1,451,472
Bus Sheiters Installed 110,299 110,209
Buses, Vans and Service Vehicles 3,374,144 5,178,440
Communication Equipment 109,278 108,278
Maintenance Equipment 125,159 125,168
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 948,014 925,202
Construction in Progress - 247
Accumulated Depreciation (4,001,261) {5.219,432)
Total Capital Assets, Net 2,305,364 2,821,674
Total Assets 3,173,687 3,727,469
Deferred Qutflows of Resources
SCRS and PORS - Funding Differences 105,692 -
SCRS and PORS - Current Period Contributions 193,061 -
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources 298,653 -
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 161,026 56,808
Accrued Payroll and Withholdings 199,039 271,975
Accrued and Withheld State Retirement Contributions 28,414 27,236
Accrued Compensated Absences 28,518 56,698
Deht Obligation Payable to SC Department of Transporiation 137,488 61,088
Capital L.ease Obligations 35000 30,000
Revolving Loan Agreement Due to SC Depariment of Transportation 60,000 60,000
Due fo Federal Transit Administration 94,699 9,156
Total Current Liabilities 745,185 573,861
Non-Current Liabilities
Accrued Compensated Absences, Net of Current Portion 74,866 53,782
Capital Lease Obligations, Net of Current Pogtion 42,151 72,151
Debt Cbligation Payable to SC Department of Transportation, Net of Current Portion 452,110 536,190
Net Pension Liability - SCRS and PORS 3,728,453 -
Total Non-Current Liabilities 4,297 58C 862,123
Total Liabilities 5,042,765 1,235,984
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Local Grant and Other Funds Received in Advance of Earnings Period 21,942 68,810
SCRS and PORS - Valuation Differences 315,417 -
Total Deferred inflows of Resources 337,359 88,610
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assels 2,228,213 2,719,623
Unrestricted (Deficit) (4,136,087} (266,648)
Tofal Net Position (Deficit) (1,807,874) 2,422 875

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, DIBIA THE COAST RTA
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Operating Revenues
Passenger Fares
Bus Advertising Revenues
Other Non-Transit Revenues

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Salaries, Wages and Fringe Benefiis
Fuel and Oil
Repairs and Maintenance
Custodial Services
Legal and Professional Fees
Utilities and Telephone
Liability Insurance
Property and Office Equipment Leases
Advertising and Markeling
Training and Travef
Interest on Capital Lease Obligations
Professional Dues and Subscriptions
Provision for Parts Inventory Obsolescence
Office Supplies. Postage and Other Expenses
Non-Capital Equipment Purchased with Grant Funds

Subtotal
Depreciation Expense
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Expenses in Excess of Operating Revenues

Grant and Other Revenues {(Expenses)
Federal Grants - Operating
State Grants - Operating
Local Grants - Operating
Federat Grants - Capital
State Grants - Capital
in Kind Contribution Revenue - Transportation Vehicles
Audit Disallowance - Bus Shelters - SC Department of Transportation
Vehicle Impairment Loss
Reduction of Debt Obligation by SC Department of Transportation
Reduction of Debt Obligation by Federal Transportation Authority
Loss on Disposai of Capital Assets, Net of Insurance Proceeds

Total Grant and Other Revenues - Net
Change in Net Position - Decrease
Net Position - Beginning of Year as Previously Reported
Restatement for the Effects of Implementation of GASB Statement No. 68
Net Position - Beginning of Year as Restated (Deficit)

Net Position - End of Year (Deficit)

2015 2014
$ 449577 & 513,739
11,847 40,956
16,012 9,956
477,436 564,651
3,033,995 3,186,890
413,310 573,303
374,044 232,895
9,700 8,644
143,421 135,032
68,224 72,542
196,600 198,172
10,848 10,636
26,393 25,936
48,569 43,905
- 7,700
12,744 9,890

21,154 -
46,716 23,078
14,317 24.737
4,416,035 4,551,260
485 865 645,522
4,901,900 5,196,782
(4,424,464)  (4,632,131)
1,053,824 2,004,284
363,282 429,951
1,623,867 1,582,883
41,001 601,810
- 29,355
144,045 166,735
(53,407)  (324,003)
(271,901} {111,178)
61,88 61,088
- 183,952
(92,504} (234,871)
3,770,195 4,391,016
(654,260)  (241,115)
2,422,875 2,663,990

(3,676.480) -
(1,253,605) 2,863,990
(1,007,874) 2,422,875

The Accompanying Notes are an integral Part of These Financial Statements
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, D/B/A THE COAST RTA

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Retelved from Private Source and Service Contracts
Cash Received from Non-Transit Revenue
Cash Payments to Employees and for Fringe Benefits
Cash Payments for Fuel and Maintenance
Cash Payments for Insurance
Cash Payments for Utilities
Cash Payments for Professional Fees ‘
Cash Payments for Property and Office Equipment Leases
Cash Payments for Interest on Capital Debt
Cash Payments for Other Operating Expenses
Cash Payments for Non-Capital Equipment Purchased with Grant Funds

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capita! Financing Activities
Proceeds from Operating Grants

Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from Capital Grants
Reductions of Capital Lease Obligations
Proceeds from the Disposal of Capital Assets
Cash Payments for Purchases of Capital Assets
Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities
Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements
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2015 2014
$ 449577 § 513,739
(3,558) 14,825
27,859 50,912
(3,042,095)  (3,154,548)
(778,214) (793,926)
(203,929) (197,618)
(66,224) (72,542)
(143,421) (135,032)
(10,848) (10,538)
- (13,200)
(37,904) (162,347)
(14,317) (24,737)
(3,823,074) (3,985,010
3,639,792 4,221,174
3,839,792 4,221,174
41,001 632,534
(25,000) (251,113)
14,210 13,891
(118,828) (497,191)
(88,617) (101,879)
(271,899) 134,285
461,048 326,763
189,149 461,048




WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, D/B/A THE COAST RTA
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014
Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used in
Operating Activities
Operating Expenses in Excess of Operating Revenues $ (4,424,464) $ (4632,131)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Expenses in Excess of
Operating Revenues to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Provision for Parts Inventory Obsolascence 21,154 -
Depreciation Expense 485,865 645,522
Expense of tems Included in Prior Year Construction in Progress 247 2,880
Pension Expenses - SCRS and PORS 261,798 -
Decrease (Increase) in Non-Grant Accounts Receivable (2,542) 14,807
Decrease (Increase) in Inventory 8,893 9,392
Decrease (Increase) in Prepaid Expenses (7.329) 554
Decrease (Increase)} in SCRS and PORS Current Period Contributions (193,061) -
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 104,218 {62,894)
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities and Withholdings (77,853) 26,860
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (3,823,074) (3,985,010)

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
D/BIA THE COAST RTA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Operations and Description of the Coast RTA

Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority {the Coast RTA) is an independent special political subdivision
of the State of South Carolina organized under Section 58-25 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina. The
governing body of the Coast RTA consists of an 11-member Board of Directors. It provides substantially all
the mass fransportation services to the general public primarily within Horry and Georgetown Counties. The
Coast RTA receives a significant amount of its funding from FTA and SCDOT under reimbursable capital and
operating grants. Other funds received from local cities and counties along with SCDOT funding are used for
matching requirements of Federal and State grants and for other expenses not qualifying as reimbursable
costs under Federal and State grant programs.

Basis of Accouniing

The Coast RTA records its financial transactions using the accrual basis of accounting in its proprietary fund,
which includes all business-type activities of the Coast RTA. Revenues are recognized when they are earned
and expenses are recognized when they are incurred. The primary operating revenues of the Coast RTA
consist of passenger fares. Operating expenses include the cost of operating the mass transit system,
administrative expenses and depreciation of purchased or donated capital assets. Al other revenues and
expenses are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the financial statement date, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates and the
differences could be significant.

Inventories

Inventories, consisting primarily of replacement parts for transit equipment and fuel, are stated at the lower of
cost or market, with cost being determined using the first-in, first-out method. Vehicle parts comprised the
highest dollar component of inventory throughout the year and at year end. Vehicle parts inventory is
maintained at levels suitable for immediate repairs and replacements, as necessary, o ensure uninterrupted
service capacity of transportation equipment,

Accounts Receivabie and Revenue Recognifion

Grant revenues earned and paid to the Coast RTA subseguent to year end are recorded as accounts
receivable at year end. Capital and operating grant and other revenue recognition requirements are met when
the related services are provided, or costs have been incurred subject to reimbursement by Federal and or
State agencies. No allowance for uncollectible accounts is recorded as management considers all accounts
and grants receivable fully coliectible.

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses are goods ot services paid for and recorded in advance of thelr use or consumption in the
course of business, which represent expenses of a future period and, therefore are properly reported as an
asset at June 30. Typically, prepaid expenses include insurance premiums paid in advance of the related
coverage period.

Reclassifications
Certain amounts in the June 30, 2014 financial statements have been reclassified fo conform io the current
year presentation.
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NOTE+  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

The Coast RTA adopted and implemented GASB Statement No. 68, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions (Employers) — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, which became effective for the current
year. The provisions of the new standard require a change in the accounting and reporting of cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plans in the financial statements of plan participating member
employers. On July 1, 2014, the date of adoption and implementation of the new standard, unrestricted net
position was restated for the initial recognition of the Coast RTA's proportionate share of the net pension
ligbility. Other changes in accounting and reporting since the date of adoption and implementation of the new
standard are more fully described in Notes 7 and 19 to the financial statements.

Capifal Assets

Capital assets purchased with federal, state or local funds are recorded at cost. Costs for all items exceeding
$5,000 individually and that have future utility service periods of more than one year from the date of purchase
are capitalized and subject to depreciation, with the exception of computers. Computers purchased are
capitalized and depreciated regardiess of the cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at the fair value when
received, with fair value being determined based on the estimated remaining useful fife of the asset received
or the remaining Federal interest value in the vehicle at the time of title transfer. Expenditures that add to the
value and life of the asset benefitted are capitalized. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs are
expensed as incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the respective assets, when purchased new, as foliows:

Estimated
Classification Useful Lives
New Vehicles, including Transportation Buses and Vans 5-12 Years
Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipment 3-5 Years
Communication, Maintenance & Computer Equipment 3-5 Years
Buildings and Building Improvements 10-30 Years

Estimated useful lives of used transportation vehicles purchased, donated or transferred are based on the
remaining useful service utility life of the vehicle when acquired, which could range from one (1) year to five (5)
years on average. When property and equipment is retired, the asset and related accumulated depreciation
accounts are adjusted accordingly, and any gain or loss is included as non-operating revenue. Sales or
disposais of assels acquired with federal funds, may require the Coast RTA to repay the funding source a
percentage of the proceeds received if a current per-unit fair market value of $5,000 or more, the vehicles for
14 passengers and smailer with less than 150,000 rniles, vehicles for 27-28 passengers with less than
250,000 miles, and vehicles for 31-41 passengers with less than 500,000 miles are sold. Vehicles purchased
with federal funds have no liens and the Coast RTA holds the titles for these vehicles. Vehicles purchased
with state funds have liens to ensure repayment and the state holds the title for these vehicles.

Statement of Cash Flows
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Coast RTA considers all temporary cash investments with
original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Financial Instruments and Fair Value

The carrying amounts for cash in the demand account, accounts and grants receivable, and accounts payable
approximate fair value because of the short maturities of those instruments. The carrying amounts of long-~
term debt, including the remaining capital lease obligation, is determined based on the current rates offered to
fhe Coast RTA for debt of the same remaining maturities. None of these financial instruments are held for
trading purposes.

Net Position

Net position reported on the statement of net position is classified in the following three components: net
investment in capital assets, restricted for debt service and capital activity; and unrestricted. Net investment in
capital assets consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation expense, and reduced by
outstanding debt, including accounts payable, that is aftributable to the acquisition, construction and
improvement of those assets. Funds restricted for debt service and capital activity consists of resources for
which constraints are placed thereon by external parties, such as lenders, regulators, grants, contributions,
tlaws regulations and enabling legislation, including self-imposed legal mandates. Unrestricted net position
consists of all other components not included in the above categories and considered expendable.
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NOTEZ  CASH DEPOSITS AND CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK

For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the fair value of the Coast RTA's
deposits may not be fully recoverable. For funds on deposit in demand accounts greater than the FDIC
insurance, the Coast RTA has a policy of requiring banks to pledge U.S. Government securities as collateral
to be held by the Coast RTA’s agent in the Coast RTA’s name. As of June 30, 2015, the Coast RTA’s cash
held in the demand deposit checking account at a local financial institution was FDIC insured or collateralized
by United States Treasury securities held by the financial institution’s trust department and pledged to the
Coast RTA.

NOTE3 BUDGET AND BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Coast RTA prepares an annual budget prior to the commencement of each fiscal year. The budget is
prepared on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
except for the exclusion of certain income and expenses. Amounts excluded include provision for
depreciation expense and capital grants. Amendments to the original budget require Board approval.

NOTE4  REVOLVING LOAN AGREEMENT DUE TO SC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

The Coast RTA has a $60,000 revolving fund loan agreement with the South Carolina Department of
Transportation, Division of Mass Transit (SCDOT). The revolving loan fund is designed to ease cash flows
resufting from the time lag between the cost of transportation and payments received from transportation
agencies. The Coast RTA is allowed to temporarily draw money from the revolving loan fund sufficient to
cover valid transportation costs incurred, which are later expected to be recovered from Federal and state
agencies. The Coast RTA is not required to pay interest on the amounts drawn and all amounts drawn are
payable to SCDOT upon termination of the agreement. The total available amount of the revolving loan fund
was received in prior years. The balance due to SCDOT at June 30, 2015 and 2014 equals the total amount
available under the revolving loan agreement.

NOTES5  LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Coast RTA purchased vartous buses and trolleys during 2002 through a capital lease arrangement with
ORIX Public Finance, LLC. The agreement required annual payments of principal and interest totaling
$234,313 due on or before February 1 of each year through 2014. The final payment of principal and interest
was made on January 14, 2014, The Coast RTA used Federal capital grant funds each year to satisfy the
annual principal and interest obligation,

The Coast RTA has a capital lease financing arrangement with SC Department of Health and Human
Services (PDHHS) reguiring principal only lease payments of $2,500 per month urdil paid in full for vehicle
equipment purchased in previous years.

The Coast RTA has a lease agreement with Canon Business Solutions for three (3) photocopiers with annual
payments of $3,295. The lease agreement is for 60 months through the period ending June 30, 2018.

The Coast RTA alsc has a lease agreement with JJC Conway Shopping Center, Inc. to lease a vehicie
parking lot adjacent to the administration building for $904 per month during 2015 for a total of $10,848. This
agreement is renewed annually between the Coast RTA and JJC Conway Shopping Center, inc.

The changes in capital lease obligation payable for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Balance at Balance at

July 1, 2014 Additions Reductions June 30, 2015
Capital Lease Obligation Payable $102151 & - $.(25,000) $ 77,151
Balance at Balance at

July 1, 2013 Additions Reductions June 30, 2014

Capital Lease Obligations Payable $353264 % - $.(251.113) $ 102,151
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NOTE §

LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Annual payments required in accordance with capital lease repayment terms for vehicles under capital lease
agreements are as follows:

Fiscal years ending June 30;
2018 (Gurrent Portion)

NOTE 6

2017
2018

Total annual payments
Less amounts representing inferest

Total minimum payments
Less current portion
Long-term portion

CAPITAL ASSETS

$ 35,000
30,000
12151

77,151
77,151
(35.000)
42,151

The Coast RTA receives capital grant funds from Federal and state agencies including the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) and the State of South Carolina Department of Transportation, Division of Mass Transit
(SCDOT). Under these capital contracts, the Coast RTA has acquired buses, vans and equipment.

The following summarizes the changes in capital assets of the Coast RTA during the year ended June 30,

2016

Account
Classifications

Land

Buildings

Bus Shelters
Vehicles
Communication
Equipment
Mainienance
Equipment
Furniture,
Fixtures

and Equipment
Const, in
Progress

Totals

l.ess
Accumulated
Depreciation

Net Carrying
Value

Prior Ending
Beginning Ending Accum. Current Accum,
Cost Additions  Deletions Cost Depr. Depr. BDeletions Depr.
$ 140,000 $ - % - $ 140,000 3 - % - $ - % -
1,451,472 48,259 - 1,499,731 883,773 86,635 - 750,408
110,289 - - 110,299 110,209 - - 110,299
5,179,449 191,450  (1,996,755) 3374144 3,955,326 280,382 (1,703,683) 2,532,035
109,278 - - 109,278 37,857 18,158 - 56,812
125,169 - - 125,159 92,768 4437 - 97,205
925,202 23,165 (353) 948,014 358,609 95,248 (353) 454 502
247 - (247) - - - -
8,041,106 262,874  {1,867.355) 8,306,625 5219432 485865 (1,704,0368) 4,001,261
(5,219,432) {4,001,261)
2,821,674 2,305,364

Capital assets of the Coast RTA were increased during the year ended June 30, 2015, from the acquisition of
new computer equipment, a new bus engine, and major repairs to the current administration building. In
addition, five (5) buses with assumed federal interests totaling $144,045 and local interests totaling $29,836
were transferred from the Dallas Area Rapid Transit (DART) on June 30, 2015. Capitalized cost of these five
(5) used buses totaled $173,881.
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NOTES  CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

The value of the Federal interest of $144,045 in the five (5) used buses transferred is included in the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as in-kind contribution revenues. These buses
were acquired by DART in August 2004 with an initial estimated useful service utility life of twelve (12) years or
500,000 miles whichever comes first.

Assets acquired in previous years including buses and vans with little or no future service utility life were sold
in-June 2015 for $14,210 representing salvage or scrap value. Costs removed oh the assets sold totaled
$1,724,855. Accumulated depreciation on the assets sold totaled $1,703,683. The net loss reported on the
sale of these assets fotaled $6,962.

On June 30, 2015, the Coast RTA removed two (2) 2011 International buses from service due to potential
factory mechanical defects that could cause the buses to operate unsafely. Both buses were acquired for a
total acquisition price of $407,852 on December 20, 2011 with a ten (10) year estimated useful life established
for each bus. As of June 30, 2015, the net book value, which represents the difference between allowable
depreciation calculated from December 21, 2011 through June 30, 2015, and the acquisition value, fotaled
$271,901 for both buses. The net book value of $271,901 was recognized in the current year statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position as an asset impairment loss, which also reduced the
carrying values of these buses by the same amount. The reduction in cost for the recognized impairment loss
is reflected in the cost deletions column in the above table of changes in capital assets. Management
estimates the decline in value as permanent due to the limited marketability and usefulness of each bus in
their current condition. Recovery of cost from International, if any, cannot be reasonably determined at this
time and recovery of cost, if any, is not expected to be significant to the remaining book value of these buses.

The following summarizes the changes in capital assets of the Coast RTA during the year ended June 30,
2014

Prior Ending
Account Beginning Ending Accum. Current Accum,
Classifications Cost Additions Deletions Cost Depr. Depr. Deletions Depr.

Land $ 140,000 $ - % - % 140000 8§ - % - 3% - 3 -
Buildings 942,397 549,381 (40,308) 1,451,472 641,426 62,652  (40,305) 663,773
Bus Shelters 110,299 - - 110,209 110,299 - - 110,299
Vehicles 5,401,806 166,235  (388,592) 5179449 3,770,829 481912 (277415) 3,955,326
Communication

Equipment 93,056 16,222 - 109,278 19,854 17,803 - 37,657
Maintenance

Equipment 134,897 - (9,738) 125,159 95,6086 6,900 (9,738) 92,768
Furniture, Fixtures

and Equipment 982,302 30,350 (87,450} 925,202 350,805 96,256  (87,451) 359,609
Const. in Progress 349,951 247 (349,951) 247 - - - -
Totals 8,154,708 762,435  (876,037) 8,041,106 4,988,819 645,622 {(414,909) 57219,432
Less Accumulated

Depreciation (4,988,819) {(5,219,432)

Net Carrying Value 3,165,889 2,821,674

As of June 30, 2013, construction in progress totaling $349,951, contained costs that were carried forward
and capitalized, expensed or removed during fiscal year 2014. Building renovation costs that were carried
forward and capitalized during June 30, 2014, totaled $98,509. The cost of the remaining fifty-eight (58) bus
shelters fotaling $248,662 were removed from the assets of the Coast RTA due to expiration of the Bus
Shelter and Signage Project during the year ended June 30, 2014, These costs were included in loss on
disposal of capital assets in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Other anciliary
costs totaling $2,880 represented prepayments of services benefiting fiscal year 2014 and were expensed.

21



NOTE6  CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Coast RTA recognized a vehicle impairment loss on one of its
buses which had no service utility life due to delayed repairs necessary for the bus to be operable. The
carrying value of this bus at June 30, 2014 exceeded the fair value (scrap value) by $111,178. The carrying
value of this bus was written off through a reduction of cost and recognized as a vehicle impairment loss in the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Capital assets of the Coast RTA were increased during the year ended June 30, 2014, from the acquisition of
new computer equipment, construction costs incurred for the completion of the building renovation project and
other costs for the audio/video equipment and work cubicles. Assets donated and capitalized during the year
ended June 30, 2014, included three (3} trolleys with assumed federal interest from Pee Dee RTA totaling
$166,735. The value of the three (3) trolleys is included in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes
in net position as in-kind contribution revenues.

Assets acquired in previous periods including office furniture, fixtures, office and computer equipment were
removed from the capital asset listing as these assets were either disposed of or were removed due to the
expiration of service utility life and were no longer in use. During the year, six (6) buses and a passenger van
were sold for $13,891. Costs and the related accumulated depreciation on these assets sold or disposed of
totaled $414,909. All assets sold or disposed of were fully depreciated and had no book value remaining at
the time of sale or disposal.

NOTE7  DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 68 entitied Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Pension Plans in June 2012, The provisions of the Statement were
effective for the year ended June 30, 2015. The following are general disclosures relative to the new
Statement as it pertains to the various retirement systems managed by the South Carolina Public
Employee Benefit Authority.

The South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA), which was created July 1, 2012,
administers the various retirement systems and retirement programs managed by its Retirement
Division. PEBA has an 11-member Board of Directors, appointed by the Govemor and General
Assembly leadership, which serves as co-trustee and co-fiduciary of the systems and the trust funds.
By law, the Budget and Control Board, which consists of five elected officials, also reviews certain
PEBA Board decisions regarding the funding of the South Carolina Retirement Systems (Systems) and
serves as a co-trustee of the Systems in conducting that review.

PEBA issues a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) containing financial statements and
required supplementary information for the Systems’ Pension Trust Funds. The CAFR is publicly
available through the Retirement Benefits' link on PEBA's website at www.peba.sc.gov, or a copy
may be obfained by submitting a request to PEBA, PO Box 11960, Columbia, SC 29211-1960. PEBA
is considered a division of the primary government of the state of South Carolina and therefore,
retirement trust fund financiat information is also included in the comprehensive annual financial report of
the state.

The South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan, was established effective July 1, 1945, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-1-20
of the South Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and other benefits
for employees of the state, its public school districts and political subdivisions.

The State Optional Retirement Program (ORP) is a defined contribution plan that is offered as an
alternative to certain newly hired state, public school, and higher education employees. State ORP
participants direct the investment of their funds into a plan administered by one of four investment
providers.
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NOTE7  DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN {Continued)

The South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System (PORS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan, was established effective July 1, 1962, pursuant to the provisions of Section
9-11-20 of the South Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement allowances and
other benefits for police officers and firemen of the state and its political subdivisions.

In addition to the cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans described above, PEBA also
administers three single-employer defined benefit pension plans, which are not covered in this report, They
are the Retirement System for Members of the General Assembly of the State of South Carolina (GARS),
the Retirement System for Judges and Solicitors of the State of South Carolina (JSRS), and the South
Carolina National Guard Supplemental Retirement Plan (SCNG).

Membership requirements are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. A brief summary
of the requirements under each system is presented befow.

SCRS - Generally, all employees of covered employers are required to participate in and contribute to
the System as a condition of employment. This plan covers general employees and teachers and
individuals newly elected to the South Carolina General Assembly beginning with the November 2012
general election. An employee member of the System with an effective date of membership prior to July
1, 2012, is a Class Two member. An employee member of the System with an effective date of
membership on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class Three member.

State ORP - As an alternative to membership in SCRS, newly hired state, public school, and
higher education employees and individuals newly elected to the S.C. General Assembly beginning with
the November 2012 general election have the option to participate in the State Optional Retirement
Program (State ORP), which is a defined contribution plan. State ORP participants direct the
investment of their funds Into a plan administered by one of four investment providers. PEBA
assumes no liability for State ORP benefits. Rather, the benefits are the liability of the investment
providers. For this reason, State ORP programs are not considered part of the retirement systems for
financial statement purposes. Employee and employer contributions to the State ORP are at the
same rates as SCRS. A direct remittance is required from the employers to the member's account
with investment providers for the employee contribution (8 percent) and a portion of the employer
contribution (5 percent). A direct remittance is also required to SCRS for the remaining portion of the
employer contribution (6.75 percent) and an incidental death benefit contribution (.15 percent), if
applicable, which is refained by SCRS.

PORS - To be eligible for PORS membership, an employee must be required by the terms of his
employment, by election or appointment, to preserve public order, protect life and property, and
detect crimes in the state; to prevent and control property destruction by fire; or to serve as a
peace officer employed by the Department of Corrections, the Department of Juvenile Justice, or the
Department of Mental Health. Probate judges and coroners may elect membership in PORS.
Magistrates are required to participate in PORS for service as a magistrate. PORS members, other
than magistrates and probate judges, must also earn at least $2,000 per year and devote at least
1,600 hours per year fo this work, unless exempted by statute. An employee member of the System
with an effective date of membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class Two member. An employee
member of the System with an effective date of membership on or after July 1, 2012, is a Class Three
member.

Benefits

Benefit terms are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. PEBA does not have the
- authority to establish or amend benefit terms without a legisiative change in the code of laws. Key

elements of the benefit calculation include the benefit multiplier, years of service, and average final

compensation. A brief summary of benefit terms for each system is presented below.

SCRS - A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of
earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 65 or with 28 years credited service regardiess
of age. A member may elect early retirement with reduced pension benefits payable at age 55 with
25 years of service credit A Class Three member who has separated from service with
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NOTE7  DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

at least eight or more years of earned service is eligible for a monthly pension upon satisfying the Rule
of 90 requirement that the total of the member's age and the member's creditable service eguals at
least 90 years. Both Class Two and Class Three members are efigible to receive a reduced deferred
annuity at age 60 if they satisfy the five or eight year earned service requirement, respectively. An
incidental death benefit is alsc available to beneficiaries of active and retired members of employers who
participate in the death benefit program,

The annual retirement aliowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the
lesser of one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on
July 1 of the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase. Members who retire under the early
retirement provisions at age 55 with 25 years of service are not eligible for the benefit adjustment until the
second July 1 after reaching age 60 or the second July 1 after the date they would have had 28 years of
service credit had they not retired.

PORS - A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of
earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 55 or with 25 years of service regardless of
age. A Class Three member who has separated from service with at least eight or more years of
earned service is eligible for a monthly pension at age 55 or with 27 years of service regardless of age.
Both Class Two and Class Three members are eligible to receive a deferred annuity at age 55 with five
or eighi years of earned service, respectively. An incidental death benefit is also available fo
beneficiaries of active and retired members of employers who participate in the death benefit
program. Accidental death benefits are also provided upon the death of an active member working for
a covered employer whose death was a natural and proximate result of an injury incurred while in the
performance of duty.

The retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the lesser of
one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on July 1
of the preceding year are eligible to receive the increase.

contributi
Contributions are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Cede of Laws. The PEBA Board may
ncrease the SCRS and PORS employer and employes contribution rates on the basis of the actuarial
valuations, but any such increase may not resull in a differential between the employee and
employer contribution rate that exceeds 2.9 percent of eamable compensation for SCRS and 5
percent for PORS. An increase in the contribution rates adopted by the board may not provide for
an increase of more than one-half of one percent in any one year. If the scheduled employee and
employer contributions provided in statute or the rates last adopted by the board are insufficient fo
maintain a thirty year amortization schedule of the unfunded liabilities of the plans, the board shall
increase the contribution rates in equal percentage amounts for the employer and employee as
necessary to maintain the thirty-year amortization period; and, this increase is not limited to one-haif of
one percent per year.

Required employee contribution rates for fiscal year 2014-2015 are as follows:

SCRS
Employee Class Two 8.00% of earnable compensation
Employee Class Three 8.00% of earnable compensation
PORS
Employee Class One $21 per month .
Employee Class Two 8.41% of earnable compensatfon
Empioyee Class Three 8.41% of earnable compensation
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NOTE?7  DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)
Contribwtions (Continued)

Required employer contribution rates for fiscal year 2014-2015 are as follows:

SCRS
Employer Class Two 10.76% of earnable compensation
Employer Class Three 10.75% of earnable compensation
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.15% of earnable compensation
PORS
Employer Class One 7.80% of earnable compensation
Employer Class Two 13.01% of earnable compensation
Employer Class Three 13.01% of earnable compensation
Ermployer Incidental Death Benefit 0.20% of earnabie compensation
Employer Accidenta!l Death Program 0.20% of earnable compensation

The Coast RTA does not have any employees covered under the State ORP retirement pian.

The Coast RTA's covered employee payroll for the year ended June 30, 2015, was $1,734,709 and
$31,143, for the SCRS and PORS, respectively. The Coast RTA's contributions to the SCRS and the
PORS for the last three fiscal years were as follows:

2016 2014 2013

Employee Contributions
SCRS $138,777 $143,935 $1564,397
PORS 2.619 1,896 1,968
Totals 141,396 145,631 156,365

Employer Contributions
SCRS $189,083 $203,428 $231,733
PORS 3,978 2,778 3,276
Totals 193,081 208 208 _235.000

The Coast RTA contributed or accrued 100% of the required confributions for the current year and for
each of the two (2) previous years.

The percentage of total required contributions contributed to the Plan for each of the three (3) years ended
June 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013 are as follows:

Percentage Contributed 2015 2014 2013
SCRS
Employee 8.00% 7.50% 7.00%
Employer 10.75% 10.45% 10.45%
Employer incidental Death Benefit 0.15% 0.15% 0.15%
PORS
Employee 8.41% 7.84% 7.00%
Employer 13.01% 12.44% 11.80%
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.20% 0.20% 0.20%
Employer Accidental Death Benefit 0.20% 0.20% 0.20%
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NOTE7  DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

The most recent annual actuarial valuation reports adopted by the PEBA Board and Budget and Control
Board are as of July 1, 2013, the measurement date. The net pension liability of each defined benefit
pension plan was therefore determined based on the July 1, 2013 actuarial valuations; using membership
data as of July 1, 2013, projected forward to the end of the fiscal year, and financial information of the
pension trust funds as of June 30, 2014, using generally accepted actuarial procedures.

At June 30, 2015, the Coast RTA reported a liability for its proportionate share of the collective net pension
liability for SCRS and PORS determined using the following method. The net pension liability of the defined
benefit plan was determined based on the most recent actuarial measurement date of July 1, 2013, using
membership data as of that date projected forward to the end of the fiscal year and financial information of
the pension trust funds as of June 30, 2014, the measurement date. The Coast RTA's proportionate share
of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Coast RTA's long-term share of contributions to
the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating Pian members, actuarially
determined.

Total Coast Net Pension Liability

Pension Liability RTA's as a Percentage of the
System Net Total Pension Liability
SCRS $17,216,684,770 $ 3,694,012 0.021456% -
PORS $ 1,914,427 ,438 $ 34,441 0.001800%

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Coast RTA recognized net pension expense for SCRS and PORS
of $268,908 and $3,013, respectively. At June 30, 2015, the Coast RTA reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Referred Quiflows [ (Inflows) of Resources

SCRS
Deferred Qutflows Deferred inflows
of Resources of Resources

Difference Between Expected and Actual Funding
Expetience $ 104,673 -
Changes in Assumptions -
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual
Earnings on Pension Plan Invesiments - $(311,432)
Changes in Proportions and Differences Between
the Coast RTA Contributions and Proportionate

Share Of Contributions - -
Direct Retirement Contributions Subseguent to the

Measurement Date 189,083 -
Totals _293 756 (311,432}
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NOTE7  DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)
Deferred Qutflows [ (Inflows} of Resources (Continyed)
PORS

Deferred OQutflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources  of Resources

Difference Between Expected and Actual Funding
Experience $ 919 -
Changes in Assumptions -
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual
Earnings on Pension Plan Investments - $ (3,085)
Changes in Proportions and Differences Between
The Coast RTA Contributions and Proportionate

Share Of Contributions - -
Direct Retirement Contributions Subsequent to the

Measurement Date 3.978 -
Totals 4 897 (3.985)
SCRS and PORS Totals 298 653 {315.417)

The following schedule reflects the amortization of the net balances of remaining deferred outfiows /
(inflows) of resources at June 30, 2014. Average remaining service lives of all employees provided with
pensions through the pension plan at June 30, 2014 was 4.233 years for SCRS and 4.856 years for PORS,

Measurement Period Ending June 30, SCRS PORS
2015 $ 45,482 $ 758
2016 45,482 758
2017 45,482 758
2018 70,030 504
Thereafter - -
Net Batance of Deferred Outfiows / {inflows) of Resources 206476 2,778

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and future salary increases. Amounts determined during the valuation process
are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. South Carclina state statuie reguires that an actuarial
experience study be completed at least once in each five-year period. The last experience study was
performed on data through June 30, 2010, and the next experience study is scheduled to be
conducted after the June 30, 2015 annual vatuation is complete.

The most recent annual actuarial valuation reports adopted by the PEBA Board and Budget and Control
Board are as of July 1, 2013. The net pension liability of each defined benefit pension plan was therefore
determined by the retirement plan's actuary, based on the July 1, 2013 actuarial valuations, using
membership data as of July 1, 2013, profected forward to the end of the fiscal year, and financial
information of the pension trust funds as of June 30, 2014, the measurement date, using generally
accepted actuarial procedures. Information included in the following schedules is based on the
certification provided by the SCRS plan's actuary.
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DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

The following provides a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used in the July 1, 2013,

valuations for SCRS and PORS.

SCRS PORS
Actuarial cost method Eniry age Entry age
Actuariatassumptions:
investment rate of return 7.5% 7.5%

Projected salary increases
Includes inflation at
Benefitadjustments

levels off at 3.5%
2.75%
lesser of 1% or $500

tevels off at 4.0%
2.75%
lesser of 1% or $500

The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependent upon the member's job category and gender. This
assumption includes base rates which are automatically adjusted for future improvement in mortality
using published Scale AA projected from the year 2000.

Former Job Class

Males

Females

Educators and Judges

RP-2000 Males (with White
Collar adjustment) multiplied by
110%

RP-2000 Fernales (with White
Coitar adjustment) multipiied by
95%

(General Employees and Members of
the General Assembly

RP-2000 Males muiltiplied by 100%

RP-2000 Females multipiied by 90%

Public Safety, Firefighters and
members of the South Carolina
National Guard

RP-2000 Males (with Blue
Collar adjustment) multiplied
by 115%

RP-2000 Females (with Blue
Coilar adiustment) multiplied by
1156%

Long Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments for actuarial purposes is based upon

the 30 vear capital market oullock at the end of the third quarier 2012,

The actuarial long-term

expected rates of return represent best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class and were developed in coordination with the investment consultant for the Retirement System
Investment Commission (RSIC) using a building block approach, reflecting observable inflation and
the fixed income markets as well as Consensus Economic
forecasts. The actuarial long-term assumptions for other asset classes are based on historical results,
current market characteristics and professional judgment.

interest rate information available in

The RSIC has exclusive authority to invest and manage the retirement trust funds' assets.

As co-

fiduciary of the Systems, statutory provisions and governance policies allow the RSIC to operate in a
manner consistent with a long-term investment time horizon. The expected real rates of investment
return, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset allocation adopied

annually by the RSIC.

For actuarial purposes, the long-term expected rate of return is calculated by

weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target allocation percentage and then adding
the actuarial expected inflation which is summarized in the table below. For actuarial purposes, the
7.50 percent assumed annual investment rate of return used in the calculation of the fotal pension
liability includes a 4.75 percent real rate of return and a 2.75 percent inflation component.
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DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are

summarized in the following table;

Long Term
Expected Expected
Target Asset Arithmetic Real Portfolio Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return
Short Term 5.0%

Cash 2.0% 0.3 0.01

Short Duration 3.0% 086 0.02
Domestic Fixed Income 13.0%

Core Fixed Income 7.0% 1.1 0.08

High Yield 2.0% 3.5 0.07

Bank Loans 4.0% 2.8 0.1
Global Fixed Income 9.0%

Global Fixed Income 3.0% 0.8 0.02

Emerging Markets Debt 6.0% 4.1 0.25
Global Public Equity 31.0% 7.8 2,42
Global Tactical Asset Allocation 10.0% 5.1 0.51
Alternatives 32.0%

Hedge Funds {(Low Beta) 8.0% 4 0.32

Private Debt 7.0% 10.2 0.71

Private Equity 8.0% 10.2 0.92

Real Estate (Broad Market) 5.0% 59 0.29

Commodities 3.0% 51 0.15

Total Expected Real Return 100.0% 5.88

inflation for Actuarial Purposes 2,75

Total Expected Nominal Return 8.63

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5 percent. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers in SCRS
and PORS will be made based on the actuarially determined rates based on provisions in the South
Carolina State Code of Laws. Based on those assumptions, each System’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods
of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers calculated using
the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the employers’ net pension liability wouid be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1.00 percent lower (6.50 percent) or 1.00 percent higher (8.50 percent)

than the current rate.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

1.00% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
System (6.50%) (7.50%) (8.50%)
SCRS $ 4,780,280 $ 3,694,012 $ 2,787,753
PORS $ 48,157 $ 34,441 $ 23,127
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NOTE7 DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

Employers' proportionate shares were calculated on the basis of historical employer contributions.
Although GASB 68 encourages the use of the employer's projected long-term contribution effort to the
retirement plan, allocating on the basis of historical employer contributions is considered acceptable.
Employer contributions recognized by the Systems that are not representative of future contribution effort
are excluded in the determination of employer's proportionate shares. Examples of employer
contributions not representative of future contribution effort are contributions towards the purchase of
employee service and employer contributions paid by employees.

The following table provides a reconciiiation of employer contributions used in the determination of

employers’ proportionate shares of collective pension amounts reported in the schedule of employer
allocations prepared for the SCRS and PORS Retirement Plans:

SCRS PORS

Employer Contributions Reported in the Statement
of Changes in Net Position for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2014 $ 206,476 $2778

Deduct: Employer Contributions Not Representative of
Future Contribution Effort - -

Employer Contributions Used as the Basis for Allocating
Employers’ Proportionate Share of Collective Pension
Amounts — June 30, 2014 Measurement Date 206,476 2,778

As of June 30, 2015, the Coast RTA included $29,414 in accrued and withheld state retirement
contributions representing outstanding obligations to the SCRS and PORS for its tegally required June
2015 contributions,

Detailed information regarding the fiduciary net position of the plans administered by PEBA is available
in the separately issued CAFR containing financial statements and required supplementary
information for SCRS and PORS., The CAFR of the Pension Trust Funds is publicly available on
PEBA's Retirement Benefits’ website at www. relirement.sc.gov, or a copy may be obtained by
submitting a request to PEBA, PO Box 11860, Columbia, SC 29211-1960.

At June 30, 2015, the Coast RTA does not provide employees with any post-empioyment benefits other
than those provided through the State retirement system.

NOTES8  FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND OBLIGATIONS

On June 1, 2015, the Coast RTA eniered into an agreement with the Dallas Area Rapid Transit (DART) to
purchase ten (10) used NABI transportation buses with remaining Federal and local interests tofaling
$338,539. The Coast RTA acguired five (5) of the ten (10) buses on June 30, 2015, The Coast RTA plans to
acquire the additional five (5} buses during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. The estimated remaining
local interest of the additional five (5) buses at the time of acquisition is expected to be $15,028 which the
Coast RTA will be required to pay at the time of purchase from local funding. The estimated remaining
Federal interest of the additional five (5) buses at the time of acquisition is expected to be $76,677 which will
gualify for in-kind revenue recognition when the titles are transferred and will require no additional cash outiay.

The Board of Directors of the Coast RTA authorized the purchase of two (2) 2016 Ford Explorers by
resolution dated February 25, 2015. The two (2) Ford Explorers were ordered in March 2015 with delivery
taken on July 20, 2015. The total purchase price at the time the titles were transferred to the Coast RTA in
July 2015 was $56,866,
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NOTE® CHANGES IN ESTIMATED USEFUL LIVES OF BUSES AND VANS

In fiscal year 2012 the Coast RTA made a change in accounting estimate with respect to the depreciation of
the fleet vehicles. The Coast RTA reviewed the accumulated depreciation of alf vehicles in the fleet calculated
using the straight-line depreciation method and determined adjustments to the remaining book value should
be made based on the actual mileage incurred on these vehicles in accordance with FTA Circular 5010.1D
and the state management plan as useful fife of assets can be calculated based on years of service or
mileage incurred. A calculation was made comparing the remaining book value based on straight-line
depreciation and the remaining value based on mileage for each vehicle. The Coast RTA recorded
adjustments to vehicles which had higher calculated book balances from straight-line depreciation as
compared to remaining useful lives calculated based on mileage to more accurately reflect the remaining
useful lives and value of the fleet. As a result, the Coast RTA recognized $36,284 in additional depreciation
expense during fiscal year 2014, the final year of recognition for the effects of the change in estimate.

NOTE 10 COMPENSATED ABSENCES

i is the Coast RTA's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay
benefits. A liability is not recorded at year end for unpaid accumulated sick leave since it is the Coast RTA's
policy to record the cost of sick leave only when it is paid due to employee absences. No sick leave benefits
are paid at the time employees terminate employment with Coast RTA. Vacation pay is accrued when earned
and any employee leave not taken at the end of the fiscal year is reported as a current or noncurrent liability.
The current Tiability portion reflects management's estimate of annual leave expected fo be taken by
employees based on past leave experience and knowledge obtained prior to the end of the reporting period.
Employees are entitled to accumulate and carry forward fwo (2) weeks of paid vacation after one year of full
time employment with the Coast RTA.

NOTE11 DEBT OBLIGATIONS PAYABLE - FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA)

The Coast RTA entered into an agreement with The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) on September 21,
2008, and with the South Carolina Department of Transportation (SCDOT) on September 30, 2009, to reduce
the debt obligation owed by the Coast RTA from $2,965,811 to a combined obligation of $765,811 resulting
from previous years’ costs that were determined not reimbursable. The reduction of $2,230,000 in total debt
owed to FTA was reported as revenue in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position for
the year ended June 30, 2010. The combined obligation owed at June 30, 2013, of $183,953, was paid off in
full during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. On February 4, 2014, the Coast RTA received a letter from
the Federat Transit Administration (FTA) acknowledging the full repayment of these federal funds.

In June 2015, the Coast RTA disposed of a 2002 Opus bus with a remaining Federal interest of $88,942,
Subsequent to the sale, the Coast RTA's management contacted the FTA and received permission to carry
over the interest into a future Federal grant which will reduce the available total grant funds by this amount.

In fiscat year 11/12, a 40’ bus which had met its estimated useful life, was destroyed by fire. The vaiue of the
bus after the fire damage was defermined fo be $7,198. The Federal interest in the bus was 80%. The
calculated value of the Federal interest is $5,757 which has been carried forward by the Coast RTA as a
liability due to FTA since June 30, 2012. Management anticipates receiving a new Federal grant in fiscal year
15/16 and using the carry over to reduce available grant funds by this amount.

As of June 30, 2015, the total Federal interest remaining in buses destroyed by fire or sold and recorded as a
current liability due to FTA was $94,699.

Included in locai grant and other funds received in advance of earnings period reported under deferred inflows
of resources is insurance proceeds received from fire damage to fwo (2) fare boxes, totaling $21,842. The
federal interest in these insurance recoveries is 100%. Management anticipates incorporating these funds
into a new Federal grant award in fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 which will reduce the available total grant
funds by this amount.
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NOTE 12 OBLIGATION PAYABLE - SC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (SCDOT)

On September 30, 2009, The Coast RTA and the SCDOT entered into an agreement whereby the Coast RTA
is required to repay certain costs that were determined not to be recoverable resulting from a review of grant
expenditures for periods prior to 2007, The recoverable amount due back to SCDOT totaled $305,526 at
June 30, 2010. The repayment terms include an annual reduction over a nine (9) year period of future SMTF
funds. Annual reductions of grant funds for the first eight (8) years are $34,924. The final year will require a
reduction of grant funds equaling $26,134. The annual reductions in State Mass Transit Funds reduces the
debt obligation and increases grant revenues as reported in the statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position. The balance outstanding as of June 30, 2015 is $130,806.

During fiscal year 2012, the Coast RTA recorded a liability of $161,944 for early disposal of the six (6) Biue
Bird buses. On August 1, 2012, the Coast RTA held a public auction to reduce debt outstanding on the six (6)
Blue Bird vehicles. Auction proceeds received were $26,624. This amount was paid to SCDOT to reduce the
outstanding debt from $161,944 to $135,320. The repayment terms include a reduction over a five (5) year
period of future State Mass Transit Funds of $27,064 per year. The balance outstanding as of June 30, 2015
is $81,192.

By letter dated December 31, 2014, the Coast RTA was notified by SCDOT of an increase in the debt
obligation due to the SC Department of Transportation as a result of the final audit of the Bus Shelter and
Signage Project by SCDOT. The total debt obligation due to the SCDOT was revised and resulted in an
increase of $63,407, from $324,093 at June 30, 2014 to $377,500 as of June 30, 2015. The required
reductions in future annual State Mass Transit Funds are $75,500 per year over a five (5) year period. The
balance outstanding as of June 30, 2015 is $377,500.

The combined debt obligation to SCDOT as of June 30, 2015, is scheduled to be reduced each year as
follows as future State Mass Transit Funds become available:

Reduction Year Amount
FY 2016 (Current Portion) $ 137,488
FY 2017 137,488
Fy 2018 137,488
Fy 2019 101,634
FY 2020 75,500
Combined Debt Obligation Payable to SCDOT 589

The change in combined debt obligation to SCDOT for the year ended June 30, 2015 is as follows:

Bajance at Scheduled Balance at
July 1, 2014 Additions Reductions June 30, 2015

Combined Debt Obligation $598178  $ 63407 $.(61,987) $ 589,508

The change ih combined debt obligation to SCDOT for the year ended June 30, 2014 is as follows:

Balance at Scheduled Balance at
July 1, 2013 Additions Reductions June 30, 2014

Combined Debt Obligation $336,073  $324.093 $ (61,988) $ 598,178

NOTE 13 LOCAL GRANT AND OTHER FUNDS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE OF EARNING PERIOD

Certain local funding, advertising, and liability insurance recoveries received in previous years, tolaling
$68,610 were carried forward to the current year. During June 30, 2015, the Coast RTA performed the
required services to satisfy the earnings requirement on a portion of the funds carried forward and recognized
$46,668 in additional cperating revenues. The balance reported At June 30, 2015 of $21,942 represents
insurance proceeds received from damages to fare boxes caused by fires in previous years. The fare boxes
were purchased with federal funds. The Coast RTA intends to use these funds in future perieds fo acquire
similar assets or to be applied toward a quaiifying future Federal grant.
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NOTE14 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Litigation

On June 17, 2014, a previous employee filed a suit against the Coast RTA claiming wrongful termination of
employment. While the Coast RTA believes it has meritorious defenses against the suit, the ultimate
resolution of the matter, which is expected to occur within the next year, could result in an unfavorable
outcome. The amount of the unfavorable outcome cannot be reasonably determined at this time. The suit
claims damages of $5 million. Management estimates any loss awarded will be covered under the Coast
RTA's general liability insurance policy. No amount has been accrued as of June 30, 2015, because the
conditions to recognize a loss contingency have not been met.

Federal Interest in Two (2) International Buses
On June 30, 2015, the Coast RTA removed two (2) 2011 International buses from service due to potential

mechanical defects that could cause the buses to operate unsafely. Both buses were acquired for a total
acquisition price of $407 862 on December 20, 2011 with a ten (10) year estimated useful life established for
each bus. As of June 30, 2015, the net book value, which represents the difference between allowable
depreciation calculated from December 21, 2011 through June 30, 2015, and the acquisition value totaled
$271,901 for both buses. The net book value of $271,901 was recognized in the current year statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position as an asset impairment loss, which also reduced the
carrying value of these buses by the same amount. The net book value also approximates the remaining
Federal interest in both buses. Management has informed FTA of the current situation and status of these
buses, The potential liability, if any, the Coast RTA would be required to pay FTA for the remaining Federal
interest totaling $271,901 cannot reasonably be determined at this time. No adjustment has been made in the
Coast RTA's accompanying financial statements to report a potential lability, if any, with regard to the
remaining Federal interest in these buses as of June 30, 2015,

NOTE15 RISK MANAGEMENT

The Coast RTA is insured to various risks of loss. Insurance premiums are paid to certain state agencies to
mitigate risk of loss that may occur. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any
uninsured losses for the covered risks. Seftlement amounts have not significantly exceeded insurance
coverage in the last several years. Various State of Scuth Carolina agencies assume substantially all risk for
the following claims of state employees as follows:

South Carolina Department of Employment and Workforce: For unemployment benefit claims.
State Accident Fund: For workers' compensation benefit claims.
South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority: For health benefits,

NOTE 16 FEDERAL AND STATE OPERATING AND CAPITAL GRANTS

In the normal course of operations, the Coast RTA receives grant funding from Federal and State agencies.
The grant programs are subject to audit by agencies of the granting authority, the purpose of which is to
ensure compliance with conditions precedent to granting of funds.

NOTE 17 ECONOMIC DEPENDENCIES

A substantial part of the Coast RTA's revenues are generated from significant tevels of funding from federal
and state operating and capital grants and local funding from Horry County, which is used to provide required
matching federal and state grant funds. A significant reduction in federal and state operating grants, or local
funding from Morry County, would have a materially adverse effect on the Coast RTA's ability to continue
operating as a going concern.

NOTE 18 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management expects to acquire the additional five (5) DART buses by the end of February 2016 at the
estimated values noted in Note 8, Financial Commitments and Obligations.

Management has evaluated significant subsequent events through January 27, 2016, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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NOTE i1¢ EFFECTS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB STATEMENT NO. 68
In accordance with GASB Statement No 68, the following financial information has been recorded in the
Coast RTA's statement of net position and statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015:

Statement of Net Position

Initial recording the Coast RTA's share of the net pension liability as of July 1, 2014:

Decrease the opening balance of unrestricted net position $3,676,480
Increase the liability for the net pension liability 3,676,480
Recognition of the Coast RTA's proportionate share of changes in deferred outflows and deferred inflows

of resources, net pension liability and net pension expense between the measurement dates of June 30,
2013 and June 30, 2014;

Recognition of an increase of deferred outflows of resources for the difference
between the expected and actual funding experience $ 105,592

Recognition of an increase in deferred inflows of resources for the difference
between projected and actual investment earnings 315,417

Recognition of an increase In deferred outflows of resources for current
year funding of employer retirement contributions 183,061

Recognition of an increase in the Coast RTA’s proportionate share of net
pension liability from June 30, 2013 fo June 30, 2014 51,873

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Recognition of current year pension expense resulting from the changes in
net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources from June 30, 2013 to June 30, 2014 261,921
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, D/B/A THE COAST RTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Actual Variance
Final Budgetary Favorable
Budget Basis {(Unfavorable)
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages $2,419,249 $2,209,294 $ 209,055
Fringe Benefits 820,851 824,701 66,150
Fuel and Oil 587,810 413,310 174,500
Repairs and Maintenance 227,750 227,579 171
Custodial Services 12,000 9,700 2,300
Operational Supplies 50,000 61,546 (11,546)
Confract Maintenance 63,500 84,919 (21,419
Legal and Professional Fees 35,000 143,421 (108,421)
Utilities and Telephone 76,000 66,224 9,776
Liability Insurance 206,000 196,600 9,400
Property and Office Equipment Leases 11,000 10,848 152
Professional Dues and Subscriptions 11,500 12,744 (1,244)
Advertising and Marketing 25,000 26,393 (1,393)
Training and Travel 25,000 46,569 (21,569)
Non-Capital Equipment Purchased with Grant Funds - 14,317 (14,317)
Provision for Parts Inventory Obsolescence - 21,154 (21,154)
Office Supplies, Postage and Other Expenses 138,450 46,716 91,734
Total Operating Expenses 4,779,110 4,416,035 363,075
Operating Revenues
Passenger Fares 538,374 449 577 (88,797)
Bus Advertising Revenues 100,000 11,847 (88,153)
Other Non-Transit Revenues 12,500 16,012 3,512
Total Operating Revenues 650,874 477,436 (173,438)
Operating Expenses in
Excess of Operating Revenues (4,128,236) (3,938,599) 189,637
Non-Operating Revenues
Reduction of Debt Obligation - SCDOT - 61,088 61,988
Local Grants - Operating 1,627,500 1,623,867 (3,633)
Federal Grants - Operating 2,394,951 1,853,824 (441,127)
State Grants - Operating 398,740 363,282 (35,458)
In Kind Contribution Revenue - Transportation Vehicles - 144,045 144,045
Total Non-Operating Revenues 4421191 4,147,006 (274,185)

See Independent Auditors’ Report
See Accompanying Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, D/B/A THE COAST RTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Actual Variance

Final Budgetary Favorable
Budget Basis {Unfavorable)
Change in Net Position - Budgetary Basis $ 292955 $ 208407 $ (84,548)

Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis

Depreciation Expense {700,000) (485,865) 214,135
Federal Capital Grants 506,262 41,001 (465,261)
Vehicle Impairment Loss - {271,901) (271,801)
Audit Disallowance - Bus Shelters - SC DOT - {53,407) (53.407)
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets, Net of Insurance - (92,504) (92.504)
Change in Net Position - GAAP Basis 89,217 (654,269) (753,486)

See Independent Auditors’ Report
See Accompanying Notes fo the Budgetary Comparison Schedule
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, D/B/A THE COAST RTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Actual Variance
Final Budgetary Favorable
Budget Basis (Unfavorable)
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages $2,323,534 $2357694 $ (34,160)
Fringe Benefits 940,552 829,196 111,356
Fuel and Oil 580,100 573,303 6,797
Repairs and Maintenance 248,500 141,668 106,832
Custodial Services 12,000 6,644 5,356
Operational Supplies 52,000 47,965 4,035
Contract Maintenance 47,275 43,262 4013
Legal and Professional Fees 30,000 135,032 (105,032)
Utilities and Telephone 78,000 72,542 5,458
Liability Insurance 190,100 198,172 (8,072)
Property and Office Equipment Leases 11,000 10,536 464
Professional Dues and Subscriptions 9,330 9,890 (560)
Advertising and Marketing 41,400 25,936 15,464
Training and Trave! 30,160 43,905 (13,745)
Interest on Capital Lease Obligations 13,200 7,700 5,500
Non-Capital Equipment Purchased with Grant Funds 16,634 24,737 (8,103)
Office Supplies, Postage and Other Expenses 46,300 23,078 23,222
Total Operating Expenses 4,670,085 4,551,260 118,825
Operating Revenues
Passenger Fares 679,200 513,739 (165,461)
Bus Advertising Revenues 100,000 40,956 (59,044)
Other Non-Transit Revenues 2,500 9,056 7,456
Total Operating Revenues 781,700 564,651 (217,049)
Operating Expenses in
Excess of Operating Revenues (3,888,385) (3,986,609) (98,224)
Non-Operating Revenues
Reduction of Debt Obligation - FTA 183,952 183,952 -
Reduction of Debt Obligation - SCDOT 61,988 61,988 -
Local Grants - Operating 1,622,338 1,682,883 (39,455)
Federal Grants - Operating 2,046,625 2,004,284 (42,341)
State Grants - Operating 429,951 429,951 -
In Kind Contribution Revenue - Transportation Vehicles - 166,735 166,735
Total Non-Operating Revenues 4,344 854 4,429,793 84,939

See Independent Auditors’ Report
See Accompanying Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, D/B/A THE COAST RTA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Actual Variance
Final Budgetary Favorable
Budget Basis (Unfavorable)
Change in Net Position - Budgetary Basis $ 456469 $ 443184 $  (13,285)
Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis
Depreciation Expense (675,000} (645,522) 28,478
Federal Capital Grants 1,015,100 601,810 (413,290)
State Capital Grants - 29,355 29,355
Vehicle Impairment Loss - (111,178} (111,178)
Audit Disallowance - Bus Shelters - 8C DOT - (324,003) (324,003)
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets, Net of Insurance - (234 671) (234,671)
Change in Net Position - GAAP Basis 796,569 (241,115) (1,037,684)

See Independent Auditors’ Report
See Accompanying Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
D/B/A THE COAST RTA

NOTES TC THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Presentation

The budgetary comparison schedules of the Coast RTA's budget and actual presentation is inciuded as other
supplementary information. The annual budget is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and includes
reconciliation to the change in net position for the years ended.

The original budget is based on the prior year actual results, except for known increases or decreases in revenues
and expenses at the time of budget preparation. The budgets may be amended when the grant information is
finalized for the current year. Management does not have any requirements to prevent overages in individual fine
items on the budget as long as the overail expenditures stay below the budgeted net change.
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, D/B/A THE COAST RTA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CFDA Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number  Expenditures
U.S, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Direct Federal Grant Funding
Urban Mass Transportation (5307 Program)
Federal Transit - Formula Grants - Capital (Urbanized Area
Formula Program)
SC-90-X282-00 20.507 % 41,001
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area
Formula Program)
SC-90-X282-00 20.507 1,131,984
Total - Federal Transit - Formuia Grants (Urbanized Area
Formuia Program) 20.507 - 1,172,985
Total Direct Federal Grant Funding 1,172,985
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Passed Through The South Carolina Department Of Transportation
Non-Urban Mass Transportation (56311 Program)
Formula Grants for Rural Areas
PT-50911-33 20.509 821,840
Total - Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509 821,840
Total Pass-Through Grant Funding 821,840
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 1,994,825

See Independent Auditors’ Report
See Accompanying Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
D/B/A THE COAST RTA

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented in accordance with
requirements of Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audifs of Stafes, Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule
may differ from amounts presented or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements.
Federal CFDA numbers are from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance published by the Office
of Management and Budget and the General Services Administration.

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presenis the activity of federal
programs administered by the Coast RTA and is presented using the accrual basis of accounting.
Federal awards that are included in the schedule may be received directly from federal agencies, as
well as federal awards that are passed through from other government agencies. Maiching costs (the
Coast RTA's share of certain program costs) are not included in the reported federat expenditures.

The amounts reported for expenditures of federai awards were obtained from the accounting and
other financial records generated from the Coast RTA's financial reporting system. The expenditures
of federal awards have been reconciled fo the Coast RTA's financial reporting system for the
applicable programs and periods.

B. Reporting Entity

Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina, financial reporting entity is
fully described in Note 1 to the financial statements. The financial reporting entity includes the primary
government. There are no other organizations or activities to include for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the
primary government's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

NOTE 2: SUBRECIPIENTS

No amounts were provided to subrecipients during the year ended June 30, 2015.

NOTE 3: CLASSIFICATION OF FEDERAL EXPENDITURES

The expenditures of federal awards were classified on the statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2015 as follows:

Federal Capital Grants

Direct $ 41001
Total Capital Grant Expenditures 41,001

Federal Operating Grants

Direct 1,131,984
Pass-Through (SCDOT) 821.840
Total Operating Grant Expenditures 1,963,824
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 1,994,825
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, D/B/A THE COAST RTA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

State Grantor/Program Title

S.C. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Direct State Grant Funding
Non-Urban Mass Transportation (5311 Program)
State Mass Transit Funds Program - Formula Grants

PT-50911-33

Urban Mass Transportation (5307 Program}
State Mass Transit Funds Program - Formula Grants
PT-50999-04

Total Expenditures of State Awards

See Independent Auditors’ Report
See Accompanying Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
D/B/A THE COAST RTA

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state awards is presented in accordance with
requirements of Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in these schedules
may differ from amounts presented or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state awards presents the activity of state awards
administered by the Coast RTA and is presented using the accrual basis of accounting.

The amounts reported for expenditures of state awards were obtained from accounting and other
financial records generated from the Coast RTA's financial reporting system. The expenditures of
state awards have been reconciled to the Coast RTA’s financial reporting system for the applicable
programs and periods.

B. Reporting Entity

Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina, financial reporting entity is
fully described in Note 1 to the financial statements.
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY D/B/A THE COAST RTA
SCHEDULE OF BUDGETED TO ACTUAL COSTS - STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

DMT Contract #
Coniract period;

Performance period;

ADMINISTRATION

Salaries and Wages

Fringe Benefits

Utilities

Professional and Tech Sves
Materials and Supplies

Casuaity and Liability Insurance
Advertising and Promotion Media

Fuel/Lubricants

Lease

[ues and Subscriptions

Travel/Training

Contract Maint Sves
Total Administration

OPERATIONS
Operating and Wages
Fuel and Lubricants
Operations Fringe Benefits

Casualty and Liability Insurance

Operations Overtime
Utilities
Total Operations

MAINTENANCE
Salaries/\Wages
Vehicle Maintenance
Fringe Benefits
Operations Supplies
Tire Maintenance
Contract Maintenance
Utilities
Fuel/Lubricants
Overtime
Janitorial
Insurance
Vehicle Registration
Dues/Subscriptions
Travel/Training

Total Maintenance

Total Program

Approved Budget
Ti Federal Costs
Tt State Costs*
Tt Local Costs

Budget Balance

See Independent Audifors’ Report

PT-50911-33
July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015
Section e
8311 -] SMTF |
Jul 14 - Jun 15
$ 226870|% 87349]% 10767]% 587193 69,035
59,363 43 565 5370 20,286 (18,858)
13,495 6,503 802 4,372 1,818
7,497 27,972 3,448 18,804 (42,727}
5,995 5,984 738 4.023 {4,750}
5,548 8,088 1,108 6,042 (10,580)
7,497 3,891 480 2,616 510
3,140 4,803 592 3,229 (5,475)
3,290 2,145 264 1,442 (552)
3,440 2.520 311 1,694 (1,0786)
7,497 9,359 1,154 8,291 (9,307)
900 801 99 538 (538)
343,559 203,880 25,133 137,056 {22,510)
338,028 175,818 88,118 128,786 (63,604}
170,200 63,472 31,812 46,493 28,423
162,851 55,318 27,723 40,518 30,205
46,143 24,789 12,414 18,143 (9,183)
30,653 10,176 5,100 7,454 7.823
0 Q 0 0 0
748,775 329,550 185,167 241,394 12,664
145263 | 110,763 13,409 18,303 2,788
70,729 43,554 5,273 7,197 14,705
54,075 44,927 5,439 7,424 (3,715)
16,268 16,116 1,951 2,663 (4,462)
6,542 17,315 2,096 2,861 (15,730)
14,146 17,253 2,089 2,851 (8,047)
12,378 9,199 1,114 1,520 545
10,609 5,363 649 886 3,711
7,073 12,683 1,523 2,079 9,112y
2,829 9,272 1,123 1,532 (9,098)
2,652 2,065 249 342 4
88 g o #] 88
0 Q 0 G &
0 0 G O 0
342,652 288,410 34,915 47,658 {28,331)
1,434,986 821,840 225,215 426,108 {38,177)
$ 1,434,086
821,840
225,215
426,108
(38,177)

See Accompanying Nofes to the Schedule of Budgeted to Actual Costs - Stafe Awards
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY D/B/A THE COAST RTA
SCHEDULE OF BUDGETED TO ACTUAL COSTS - STATE AWARDS

DMT Contract #
Contract period:

Performance period:

ADMINISTRATION
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Utilities

Professional and Tech Sves
Advertising and Promotion Media

Materials and Supplies

Casualty and Liability Insurance

Fuel/Lubricants

Lease

Dues and Subscriptions

Travel/Training

Contract Maint Svecs
Total Administration

OPERATIONS
Operating and Wages
Operations Fringe Benefits
Fuel and Lubricants

Casualty and Liability Insurance

Operations Overtime
Total Operations

MAINTENANCE

Salaries/\Wages
Vehicle Maintenance
Fringe Benefits
Operations Supplies
Tire Maintenance
Contract Maintenance
Utilities
Fuel/Lubricants
Overtime
Janitorial
insurance
Vehicle Registration
Dues/Subscriptions
Travel/Training

Total Maintenance

Total Program

Approved Budget
Ti Federal Costs
Ti State Costs”
Tt Local Costs

Budget Balance

See Independent Auditors' Report

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

PT-50299-04
July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015
section
5307 -} SMTF*
Jul 14 - Jun 15

$ b527335]% 1085471% 8872193 167534 1% 242,382
138,583 54,138 4,425 83,557 (3,527)
31,505 8,082 661 12,473 10,289
17,503 34,761 2.841 53,650 (73,749)
17,503 7,436 608 11,477 (2,018)
14,005 11170 913 17,240 {15,318)
12,952 4,836 395 7,464 257
7,351 5969 488 9212 {8,318)
7,701 2,665 218 4114 704
8,051 3,131 256 4,833 (189
17,503 11,830 951 17,850 (13,028)
2,100 995 80 1,637 (512}
802,102 253,360 20,708 391,041 136,993
709,888 236,174 53,988 565,440 {145,712)
340,991 85,262 19,490 204,130 32,109
356,381 74,304 16,985 177,897 87,195
06,618 33,272 7,605 79,657 (23,918)
63,974 13,670 3,125 32,727 14,452
1,567,852 442,682 101,191 | 1,059,851 {35,872)
265,498 167,423 6,209 85,232 6,634
129,271 65,833 2442 33,514 27,482
98,833 67,909 2,519 34,871 {6,166}
29732 24,360 903 12,401 {7,932)
11,958 268,173 971 13,324 (28,510}
25,854 26,078 967 13,276 (14,467}
22622 13,805 516 7,079 1,122
19,391 8,107 301 4127 6,856
12,927 18,020 705 9,682 (16,480)
5171 14,015 520 7,136 (16,500)
4,848 3,119 115 1,592 22
162 0 0 0 162
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
626,267 435,942 16,168 221,934 (47,777)
2,996,221 | 1,131,984 138,067 | 1,672,826 53,344

$ 2,986,221

1,131,884

138,067

1,672,826

53,344

See Accompanying Notes to the Schedule of Budgeted to Actual Costs ~ State Awards
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
D/B/A THE COAST RTA

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF BUDGETED TO ACTUAL COSTS - STATE AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedules of budgeted fo actua! costs — state awards are presented in accordance
with requirements of Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Govermnments and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in these schedules
may differ from amounts presented in or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying schedules of budgeted to actual costs — state awards presents the activity of state
awards administered by the Coast RTA and is presented using the accrual basis of accounting.

The amounts reported for actual expenditures of state awards were obtained from accounting and
other financial records generated from the Coast RTA's financial reporting system. The actual
expenditures of state awards have been reconciled to the Coast RTA's financial reporting system for
the applicable programs and periods.

Federal section 5307 and 5311 awards and related SMTF’s are reported net of respective match
requirements. Capital expenditures are excluded from the amounts reported in these schedules.

Financial information reported in the “local column” of each program includes non-reimbursable
expenses incurred by the Coast RTA which were funded by passenger fares and other contra
revenues of $449,581 and $27,855, respectively. These revenues were not used as cost matching
requirements of federal and state grant funding. Local County and city grant funds of $1,623,867
were available for cost matching requirements for the federal and state grants administered by the
Coast RTA for the year ended June 30, 2015.

B. Reporting Entity

Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina, financial reporting entity is
fully described in Note 1 to the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority
d/b/a The Coast RTA
Conway, South Carolina

To the Board of Directors:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities of Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority (the Coast RTA), Conway, South Carolina, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina's basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated January 27, 2016.

Internal Controf Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Waccamaw Regional
Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina’s Infernal control over financial reporting (internal
control} to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina's
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Waccamaw
Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina's internal control.

Qur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
were not identified. However, as described in the accompany scheduie of findings and questioned
costs, we ideniified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a conirol does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A matferial weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonabie possibility that a
material misstatement of the entily's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as item no.’s 2015-001, 2015-002, 2015-003, 2015-004, and 2015-005
to be materiat weakness.

COLUMBIA ORANGEBURG BARNWELL GREENVILLE
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Waccamaw Regicnal Transportation
Authority, Conway, South Carolina's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and gquestioned costs as item no.’s 2015-006 and 2015-007.

Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina’s Responses to the
Findings

Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Caroling’s responses to the findings
identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs,
Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina's responses were not
subjected fo the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly,
we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Columbia, South Carolina
January 27, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority
dibfa The Coast RTA
Conway, South Carolina

To the Board of Directors:
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority (the Coast RTA), Conway, South
Carolina's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-
133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Waccamaw
Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina's major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2015. Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina’s
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, reguiations, contracts and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Waccamaw Regional
Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina's major federal programs based on our audit of the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States: and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Waccamaw
Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legai determination of Waccamaw Regional
Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina’s compliance.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion on Formula Grants for Rural Areas Major Federal Program

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, Waccamaw Regional
Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina did not comply with requirements regarding CFDA
20.509, Formula Grants for Rurat Areas as described in finding no. 2015-006 for Allowable Costs /
Cost Principles. Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for Waccamaw
Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina to comply with the requirements
applicable to that program.

Qualified Opinion on Formula Grants for Rural Areas Major Federal Program

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,
Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on Formula Grants for Rural Areas major federal program for the year ended June 30,
2015,

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Federal Transit - Formula Grants Major Federal Program

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, Waccamaw Regional
Transportation Authority, Conway, South Caroiina did not comply with requirements regarding CFDA
20.507, Federal Transit - Formula Grants as described in finding no. 2015-007 for Cash Management.
Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for Waccamaw Regional
Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina to comply with the requirements applicable to that
program.

Qualified Opinion on Federal Transit - Formula Grants Major Federal Program

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,
Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on Federal Transit - Formula Grants major federal program for the year ended June
30, 2015,

Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Caroling’s responses to the
noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina's
responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina is
responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, Scouth Carolina's internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federat
program and to test and report on internal controi over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular
A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Waccamaw Regional
Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina’s internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed
below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal conirol over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance (Continued)

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a controi over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A maferial weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
We consider the deficiency in internal control over compiiance described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questicned costs as item no. 2015-006 to be a material weakness.

A significant deficiency in internal confrol over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough fo merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiency in
internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and guestioned
costs as iftem no. 2015-007 to be a significant deficiency.

Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South Carolina’s responses to the internal
control over compliance findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. Waccamaw Regional Transportation Authority, Conway, South
Carolina’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Columbia, South Carclina
January 27, 2016
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WACCANMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
D/B/A THE COAST RTA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
SECTION|I SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditor's report issued on the basic financial statements: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
¢ Material weakness identified? Yes

e Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? No

Noncompliance material to financial statemenis noted? No

FEDERAL AWARDS
internal control over major federal programs:
« Material weaknesses identified? Yes

* Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? Yes

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs: Qualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with Section
510(a) of OMB Circular A-1337 Yes

Identification of major federal programs:
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (DOT)

CFDA NO. PROGRAM NAME
20.507 Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program)

20.509 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

Total Major Federal Program Expenditures: § 1,994,825
Dollar threshold used fo distinguish between Type A and B programs: $ 300.000

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? No
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL. TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
D/B/A THE COAST RTA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SECTION I FINDINGS RELATED TO THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINDING NO: 2015-001

Criteria:

Organizations should design internal controls to prevent or detect and correct account misstatements
on a timely basis to ensure accuracy in financial reporting. Effectively designed internal controls
should include procedures to test for impairment loss on capital assets subject to the potential for an
other than temporary decline in value resulting from the difference between the fair value and carrying
value of the capital asset. Types of events that indicate that asset cost recoverability should be
assessed include a significant decrease in market value, a significant decrease in the service use of an
asset, adverse changes in the legal or business environment that affects an asset’s value or the costs
of constructing or improving an asset significantly exceed those originally expected.

Condition:

During the performance of our audit procedures, we became aware of two (2) International buses
removed from service at the end of the fiscal year due to potential mechanical defects that could
render the buses unsafe in their normal operating capacity. Due to the limited operating capabilities of
these buses and the decline in the service utility values, the fair value of both buses was determined to
exceed the undepreciated or book value by $271,901.

Effect:

The Coast RTA's reported value for capital assets was overstated and charges against current year
operating revenues were understated by the difference between the carrying value and the estimated
fair value of the two (2) buses by $271,901. Existing internal controls were not effective in the
prevention or detection and timely correction of this error in financial reporting. Monitoring of internal
control procedures to assess whether existing controls were suitably designed to test for impairment
loss were not performed and documented.

Recommendations:

Management of the Coast RTA shouid design effective internal controls over financial reporting to
prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. The Coast RTA should design controls
to include testing for impairment loss on all capital assets subject to the potential for an other than
temporary decline in value as determined between the fair value and carrying value at least annually
with the results of testing documented and the recognition of a loss in the financial statements in the
period the loss in value is determined. Monitoring controls should also be designed and performed
throughout the year.

Views of Responsible Officials / Corrective Action Plan:

The Coast RTA's management agrees with the finding. Monitoring controls have been put into place to
address potential variances between the fair value and carrying value of its capital assets subject to
impairment losses. Additionally, all transportation vehicles out of service for more than 30 days will
have a benchmark plan to put them back into service. At that time, if a transportation vehicle is
determined to have changed its cost recoverability due to a significant decrease in its service ulility
value, a significant decrease in the use of the vehicle, adverse changes in the legal or business
environment that affects a vehicle's value or if costs of improving the asset significantly exceeds those
amounts originally expected, then adjustments will be made in the financial statements to record the
effect of this change in a timely manner. We will work with FTA to resolve the issues with these
vehicles in FY 16.

55



WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
D/BIA THE COAST RTA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SECTION I FINDINGS RELATED TO THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINDING NO: 2015-002

Criferia:

Segregation of duties, including journal entry processing and posting responsibilities, is critical to an
effective internal control system. Proper segregation of duties means that no single individuai should
have control over two or more phases of a single transaction or operation. When these functions or
duties cannot be separated, a detailed supervisory review of related activities is required as a
compensating control activity; it serves to mitigate the severity of the control deficiency.

Condition:

Certain adjusting journal entries were made during the process of closing the year which significantly
affected various account balances used for reporting purposes. The non-routine adjustments did not
include proper review and approval with appropriate support prior to or subsequent to posting the
adjustments to various asset, expense and revenue account balances. As a result, certain
adjustments were made incorrectly, resulting in misstatements which were not corrected or detected.

Effect:

Due to the lack of proper segregation of duties, review and approval and appropriate support for
certain journal entry adjustments, several account balances contained material misstatements which
were not prevented or detected and corrected timely during the process of the year end close.
Specifically, journal entries were made to record a loss of $111,178 from the sale of a used bus in June
2015. The loss and reduction of the carrying value of this bus was recognized and included in the June
30, 2014 financial statements as an impairment loss of $111,178. At June 30, 2015, net capital assets
were understated and the change in net position (decrease) was overstated by the same amount for
the year ended June 30, 2015. In addition, certain estimated amounts were used to record federal and
state grants receivable, rather than actual funds due based on allocated costs used for draws
submitted subsequent to year end. The balance recorded for accounts receivable — federal and state
grants and the related federal and state grant revenues were understated by $245 465 at June 30,
2015,

Recommendations:

Management of the Coast RTA should establish proper segregation of duties controls and assign or
allocate incompatible duties and responsibilities from one individual who participates in more than one
phase of a single transaction or operating activity. Appropriate compensating or mitigating controls
should also be considered and implemented to reduce the severity of the control deficiency if duties
and responsibilities cannot be reasonably separated due to limited personnel resources. In addition,
management should strengthen internal controls over the year end closing process to ensure all
financial information is accurate, complete and recorded in the correct amounts and in the correct
period.

Views of Responsible Officials / Corrective Action Plan:

The Coast RTA's management agrees with the finding. Now that the Coast RTA’s administration is
fully staffed, we believe that the segregation of duties issues will be resolved with respect to formally
reviewing journal entries before and after they are input into the system. Segregation of duties and
year end closing internal controls will be changed as appropriate and monitored to ensure
misstatements are prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis and before completion of the
final year end close and incompatible duties and responsibilities are prevented to allow for proper
segregation of duties.
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WACCAMAW REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
D/B/IA THE COAST RTA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SECTION !l FINDINGS RELATED TO THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINDING NO: 2015-003

Criteria:

Proper internal controls over financial reporting require that procedures be designed and followed at all
times to prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis to ensure that interim and
annual financial statements are accurate, complete and presented in accordance with the
organization’s appropriate financial reporting framework (GAAP).

Condition:

During the performance of our audit procedures, we discovered one ‘miscellaneous’ expense account
contained multiple transactions that would typically be reported in other appropriate expense accounts
or account groups for transactions containing expenses with the same or similar purpose. These
misstatements were not timely corrected. Monitoring of controls over expense account classifications
and financial reporting were not performed.

Effect:

The Coast RTA’s interim and preliminary annual financial statements which were presented to the
Board of Directors for review contained one account with approximately $114,000 of expenses that
were not reclassified timely into the appropriate expense accounts or account groups. The majority of
the $114,000 in expenses reclassified was for professional consultant services totaling $94,500. The
grouping of these expenses to the miscellaneous - unallowable classification during the year were not
included in federal or state grant expenses subject to reimbursement and were not budgeted.

Recommendations:.

Management of the Coast RTA should follow established internal controls over financial reporting at all
times during the year to ensure that financial information, including actual to budget comparisons, is
accurate, complete and presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Designed controis over financial reporting should be followed at all times to
prevent or detect and correct account misstatements on a timely basis. Actual expenses should foliow
the expectations used in the development of the original or amended budget. Monitoring of internal
controls over expense classifications and financial reporting should be performed with the results of the
monitoring communicated and documented.

Views of Responsible Officials / Corrective Action Plan:

The Coast RTA’'s management agrees with the finding. In order to timely correct misstatements,
internal controls over financial reporting have been put into place, including comparing actual to
budgeted revenue and expense accounts, to reflect accurate and complete financial information
presented in accordance with GAAP. Coast RTA will be revising the chart of accounts in Sage to place
non-reimbursable and irregular expenses into accounts that relate o the type of expense and eliminate
the use of one single miscellaneous account where these expenses are “parked” until they are re-
assigned.
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SECTION Il FINDINGS RELATED TO THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINDING NO: 2015-004

Criteria:

Proper internal controls over capital asset management and recording require internal control
procedures be designed and followed at all times to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis to ensure that interim and annual financial statements are
accurate, complete and presented in accordance with the organization’s appropriate financial
reporting framework (GAAP).

Condition:

During the performance of our audit procedures, we discovered five (5) used buses were
acquired by the Coast RTA on June 30, 2015, from another out-of-state transportation authority
under a federally approved interest transfer agreement. The five (5) buses were titled to the
Coast RTA on the last day of the fiscal year. The June 30, 2015, financial statements of the
Coast RTA did not include the correct recording of the acquisition price of the five (5) used
buses and the related in-kind revenue representing the remaining federal interest transferred.

Effect:

Net capital assets of the Coast RTA were understated by the remaining federal interest of
$144,045 transferred at the time these buses were acquired. Non-operating revenues were
understated by $144,045 for the in-kind value received at the time of ownership. In addition,
the initial payment of $29,836 paid at the time of acquisition of these buses was initially
recorded in the construction in process account. The initial payment by the Coast RTA
represented the previous authority’s local funds share of the cost of these buses.

Recommendations:

Management of the Coast RTA should follow established internal controls over financial
reporting at all times during the year to ensure that financial information is accurate, complete
and presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. Designed controls over financial reporting should be followed at all times to prevent
or detect and correct account misstatements on a timely basis. Monitoring of asset
management controls should also be performed throughout the year to ensure procedures are
effectively designed and adequate over all capital asset additions to ensure capital assets are
recorded in the proper amount, in the proper reporting period, and identified by funding source,
including a schedule of remaining federal interest attached to the respective capital assets
acquired.

Views of Responsibie Officials / Corrective Action Plan:

The Coast RTA's management agrees with the finding. In order to timely correct
misstatements, internal controls over financial reporting have been put into place, including
monitoring controls over asset management to ensure capital assets owned by the Coast RTA
are recorded in the proper reporting period, are recorded in the proper amounts and are
identified by funding source, including the maintenance of information related to any remaining
federal interest attached to the respective capital assets.
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SECTION It FINDINGS RELATED TO THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINDING NO: 2015-005

Criteria:

Proper internal controls over financial reporting, including provisions for estimated or actual loss
contingencies, require that procedures be designed and followed at all times to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis to ensure that interim and annual financial
statements are accurate, complete and presented in accordance with the organization's
appropriate financial reporting framework (GAAP). Entities acquiring capital assets from federal
capital funding sources are required to maintain accurate and complete records during the
service utility life of the asset and repay any portion of the remaining federal interest at the time
of sale or disposal of the asset to FTA if the remaining federal interest is $5,000 or more.

Condition:

During the performance of our audit procedures, we became aware of a remaining federal
interest attached to a used bus sold in June 2015. Previously, an impairment loss provision for
the decline in value for this bus was reported in the June 30, 2014 financial statements. The
remaining federal interest was not recorded as a liability to FTA at June 30, 2015,

Effect:

The Coast RTA's interim and preliminary annual financial statements did not properly report a
liability on its statement of net position of $88,942 payable to FTA, equal to the remaining
federal interest on the bus sold in June 2015. Liabilities and non-operating expenses (losses)
of the Coast RTA were understated by this amount at June 30, 2015.

Recommendations:

Management of the Coast RTA should follow established internal controls over financial
reporting at all times during the year to ensure that financial information, including contingent
and actual liabilities are recorded in correct amounts and in the correct reporting period based
on facts and circumstances and the existence of known obligations to third parties.

Views of Responsible Officials / Corrective Action Plan:

The Coast RTA’s management agrees with the finding. In order to prevent and detect and
timely correct misstatements, internal controls over year end close and financial reporting will
be strengthened and monitored to ensure accuracy and completeness in reporting in
accordance with GAAP, including obligations owed for federal interests remaining on capital
assets sold or disposed. Coast RTA has recently reached a verbal agreement with the FTA
Region IV office on a method for relieving us of this liability. We will be using FY13 5307
formula funds to establish a grant in FY 18 and then the grant will be reduced by an amount
equal to the Hability.
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SECTION Il FINDINGS RELATED TO THE AUDIT OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FINDING NO: 2015-006

CFDA NO. 20.509
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
FORMULA GRANTS FOR RURAL AREAS
NON-URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION (5311 PROGRAM)

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENT: ALLOWABLE COSTS / COST PRINCIPLES

Critetia.

In accordance with OMB Circular A-87, costs charged to a federal program should be
necessary and reasonable and allocable to a particular cost objective if the goods or services
involved are chargeable or assignable to such cost objective in accordance with relative
benefits received.

Condition / Cause:

The Coast RTA included $42,400 in its June 2015 draw request to provide a primary and
budgeted source of funding for the purchase of two (2) Ford Explorers which were ordered in
March 2015. These funds were also included in recorded grant funds receivable at June 30,
2015. The two (2) Explorers were delivered to the Coast RTA and acquired by title transfer in
mid July 2015, Grant management oversight was not appropriately performed and internal
controls were not followed appropriately at the time the grant funds were requested.

Effect:

The funds drawn under the 5311 Program in June 2015 were not in accordance with allowable
cost provisions in accordance with OMB Circular A-87. Federal grant funds receivable and the
related federal grant revenues were overstated by $42,400.

Questioned Costs: $42.400.

Recommendations:

Management of the Coast RTA should follow established cost principles in accordance with
OMB Circular A-87 at all times and record revenues and obtain cost reimbursements when the
service has been performed or the product or henefit received.

Views of Responsible Officials / Corrective Action Flan:

The Coast RTA's management agrees with the finding. The delay in the purchase and
ultimately the draw for this expense was due to delays in the determination that the vehicles
met FTA "Buy America” requirements. We were informed in May that the vehicles were ready
and it took over 45 days for the manufacturer to return adequate documentation that the
vehicles met "Buy America” regulations. Nevertheless, the revised chart of accounts and more
timely draws will ensure future requests for all federal funding will be based on actual costs
incurred for the period benefited. Grant management internal controls will be designed and
monitored with specific grant management responsibilities assigned to current designated
personnel for ensuring Coast RTA’s compliance with the applicable compliance requirements
for each of its federal programs.
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SECTION lil FINDINGS RELATED TO THE AUDIT OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FINDING NO: 2015-007

CFDA NO. 20.507

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
FEDERAL TRANSIT - FORMULA GRANTS (URBANIZED AREA FORMULA PROGRAM)
URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION (5307 PROGRAM)

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENT: CASH MANAGEMENT

Criteria:

In accordance with OMB grant management rules and regulations, entities other than states,
receiving reimbursement under grants and cooperative agreements are required to identify and
maintain supporting documentation showing that the costs for which reimbursement was
requested were paid or incurred prior to the date of the reimbursement request.

Condition / Cause;

In calculating the draw for the month ended April 2015 under the 5307 Program, the Coast RTA
included an additional $65,842 in its ECHO draw request which was not supported by
reimbursable costs that were incurred prior to the request date. The documentation used for
the draw request was not properly and adequately reviewed and approved prior to the draw
request and contained an error that was not prevented or detected during the processing of the
monthly draw request.

Effect:

The Coast RTA received funds in advance of the earnings period when the allowable costs
were incurred. The error in the April 2015 ECHO draw request was discovered in the following
month of May 2015. The Coast RTA received no reimbursement of funds and no draw was
requested for operations for the month of May 2015. This was considered an isolated
noncompliance instance in the last quarter of the fiscal year and not a systemic problem.

Questioned Costs; $65,842.

Recommendations:

Management of the Coast RTA should follow established cash management policies and
procedures at all times and only request reimbursement of federal funds for allowable costs in
the period the costs were paid or incurred. Monitoring of internal controls over grant
management should be performed and the results of the monitoring should be timely
communicated and documented.

Views of Responsible Officials / Corrective Action Plan;

The Coast RTA’'s management agrees with the finding. Future requests for all federal funding
wili be based on actual costs incurred for the period benefited. The chart of accounts will be
redesigned and journal entries will be monitored with specific grant management
responsibilities assigned to current designated personnel for ensuring Coast RTA’s compliance
with the applicable compliance requirements for each of its federal programs.
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FINDING NO. 2014-001

Condition.

During the performance of our audit procedures, we became aware of a bus that was not
included in the operating fleet due to deferred repairs. Management plans to sell the bus for
scrap in fiscal year 2015. It was determined the carrying value of this bus at June 30, 2014,
exceeded the fair value by $111,178.

Effect:

The Coast RTA’s reported value for capital assets was overstated and charges against current
year operating revenues were understated by the difference between the carrying value and
scrap value of the bus by $111,178. Existing internal controls were not effective in the
prevention or detection and correction of this error in reporting. Monitoring of internal control
procedures to assess whether existing controls were suitably designed to test for impairment
loss were not performed and documented.

Status:
A similar finding, Finding No. 2015-001, was reported for the year ended June 30, 2015, as it
relates to valuation of capital assets.

FINDING NG: 2014-002

Condition:

During the course of our audit, we discovered the current interim general manager has
responsibilities for two or more phases of the same or similar transactions and operations.
Specifically, one individual has the authority to prepare and post journal entries to the general
ledger accounts without prior review and approval of the journal entries, including supporting
documentation from someone independent of the journal entry process. In addition, the same
individual has the responsibility for oversight of the Coast RTA’s operating activities, including
compliance with laws, regulations and provisions of grant agreements and compliance
requirements, as well as the primary financial statement accounting and reporting functions.

Effect: _

The risk that one person could carry out and conceal errors, fraud or noncompliance with
applicable laws, regulations or provisions of contracts or grant agreements, in the course of
performing their day-to-day activities is higher when allowed or assigned access to incompatible
duties or responsibilities,

Status:

A similar finding, Finding No. 2015-002, was reported for the year ended June 30, 2015, as it
relates to insufficient segregation of duties over preparation, posting, review and approval of
non-routine adjusting journal entries.
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FINDING NO: 2014-003

Condition:

During the performance of our audit procedures, we discovered one expense account
contained multiple transactions that would be typically be reported in other appropriate expense
accounts or account groups for transactions containing expenses with the same or similar
purpose. In addition, correcting journal entries to properly reclassify the expenses to the
appropriate expense accounts and to record an additional payroll related liability and accrual
were not made until several months subsequent to year end during the year end closing
process. We also identified a correction of a misstatement of an expense account and a
related accrued hability account that was not made until after the initial year end closing
process. These misstatements were not timely corrected.

Effect:

The Coast RTA's interim and preliminary annual financial statements which were reviewed and
approved by the Board of Directors contained one account with approximately $141,000 of
expenses that were not reclassified timely into the appropriate expense accounts or account
groups and an unrecorded liability and related expense of approximately $103,500. These
corrections to account misstatements were not made until after the initial year end closing
process. The majority of the $141,000 in expenses reclassified was for a non-budgeted
feasibility study and additional employee health insurance premiums, Approximately $111,000
of these expenses were not charged to federal or state grant and were not included in the
preparation of the annual operating budget.

Status:

A similar finding, Finding No. 2015-003, was reported for the year ended June 30, 2015, as it
relates to expense account misstatements not being corrected timely and coded to the
appropriate expense accounts or account groups.
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